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STATE NONFERROUS
METALS INDUSTRY ADMINISTRATION*

FEAESDEREDERAT
CHINA NONFERRGOUS METALS
GROUP [HONG KCNGJ LIMITED*

[

| REBSEOERAA
| ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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25 | SRER b
TRADING SPEC!ALISED CONSTRUCTION REAL ESTATE
CONTRACTING
i
| IHBEER . BERERERSE
" INDUSTRIAL LUBRICANT J PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
PRODUCTS (Jaeger) & INVESTMENT
; { : = :
HBLER HMEIRE 85 X B
CURTAIN WALL ELECTRICAL & MECHANICAL FIRE PROCFING
[{Condo) ENGINEERING (Polycrown) MATERIALS (Enful)

“ *%AE*%@(f‘PEJ)@%@mﬁz§ﬁﬁi&@§1_9&§%_”” FoRTAGEATAAZLABRRN FROXUGROINN  wROas]
THOEBBRPSHHE -

ERRATRBE(ERDGEERA=CD-FBA + BESL EEFerrier Hodgson & Co. MM % TJonn LeesRDesmond Chiong ) R FREZHRRIT +
BEESZOEBRNERLT((REREEE]) - NERTRA  IREN - FAREEREBAOEAAOF2ENOROLSGTRRUERAGUINEALIX
BE -

* On 19 February 2001, Mr. Sheng Wa Ren {the Director of the State Economic and Trade Commission of The People’s of China (the “PRC” or "China”)
promulgated that the Companys ultimate controliing shareholder, the State Nonferrous Metals Industry Administration of the PRC was cancelled n the course
of restructuring of the non-ferrous metals industry of the PRC.

On 10 April 2002, the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ["HKSAR" or “Hong Kong"} ordered that John Lees and Desmond Chiong,
principals of Ferrier Hodgson & Co.. be appointed with immediate effect as provisional liquidaters of China Nonferrous Metals Group (Hong Kong) Limited
{"CNMG"}, the controlling sharehclder of the Company for the time being. The Company has already requested the provisiondl iquidators to keep the
Company informed of any material development of CNMG which may have an impact on the Company.
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TR Chairman’s Statement

CCTREEE BEAN
Strive to Establish in Hong Kong
whilss Developing Mainland Operations 29

REREBENENMEBEESRELLE
FEE ST -—FNEBRBETHESL - 0
LFEAARERGERENESEWEEANRE
BB FSEXEELATEHE -®BIAREER
BIHRE - AREBEIRIBEEITREEENAE
ELIE WRTMERENEE  BERER
RER  LBEAET  SETEEANG
o REFOBEREBHNDIR -

Overview

With the global economy slowing down and Hong Kong's economy
continuing its sluggish mode, the Group recorded less than satisfactory
performance in 2001. On top of this, substantial provision had to be
made during the year for specific investment projects and self-owned
property, resulting in an overall loss. Though faced with such great
challenges, the Group persisted in carrying through internal consolidation
and cost control and adjusted our development strategy in response to
the changing market environment. The ultimate goal is to strengthen our
financial position and to create more favourable conditions to enable us

to grasp future development opportunities as they arise.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED S RE B EE Q@ HR 2 8




A Brighter Future Ahead

B B & Chairman’s Statement

mRERE RSQAFEAKYF

FAR - AEESE-SNBENBEERESS
BERRF - KT —EBZMAEEE
Fe RIS X EEEMN B QR #EME - T4
MOETZREER  BE E-JFKETE
ERBURRER B FETA - BEAFN
NERE UEEEREEBNEREE -

YRER BRAM

RIESERATHRI) EEBETEWEL
BIMRPBEERENEE  BIUIZEE
B BRAMIBEIEMSTREER - ANFA
BEERWEAT TENBRFES - A
REARYE LUSZTESMEENSE - BR
BERER  BERIBRESALER  LEARHK
ZERE -

BEBEEMMBSNELREE Rl H
FETEEERISME - FINTHACE
MEREEZEEER  FEDBEHMNE -
EREDRRERIDED EoFEEBEH
H BAEEHXRBERESHSZET - [BKHK
I (Nichibe| 2B ERREERTR 2
REBRE - REE -

BAEREDER 2T 6 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

Step Up Control and Enhance Corporate
Governance

During the year, the Group further strengthened internal control and
improved the standard of corporate governance. An independent internal
audit department was set up whilst the supervision of operations of
subsidiaries was enhanced. Several focused measures were implemented,
including, further scrutiny over the approval procedures of construction
contracts and profit margin guidelines for tenders, streamlining headcounts
and organization structure, all with the aim of achieving a more effective

and rational resource allocation.

Strive to Establish in Hong Kong YWhilst
Developing Mainland Operations

Apart from active internal reengineering, various subsidiaries under the
Group gradually adopted the principal market development strategy of
“Strive to Establish in Hong Kong whilst Developing Mainland Operations”
as the economic conditions in Hong Kong and China continued to evolve.
In a nutshell, the strategy calls for utilizing the existing comparative
advantage of Hong Kong in terms of technical skill and talent to actively
explore mainland business, ultimately achieving higher economic benefit.
The strategy has brought excellent resuits, with the Group succeeding in
securing a number of contracts and negotiation on several projects are

now underway.

In the past, Jaeger Group focused its business mainly in the Southern
China market. However, it has now set up distribution bases in several
important industrial cities in Western China. Overseas, Jagger has extended
its reach to a number of Southeast Asian countries. At the end of the year,
distribution agencies were set up in Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand
respectively. In the area of product development, in May 2001, Jaeger
successfully re-gained the sole distributorship in Hong Kong and China of
Nichibei's range which is the top range of die-casting product series in
Japan. The potential of this project is most promising.

In specialized construction business, Condo Group. the Group's subsidiary,
has gradually increased the weight of mainiai blsine s, N view of
changes in the local market. In 2001, Condo activiy e ticipaica in
mainland development projects managed by I gy Kung onterpisas,
This has enabled further spread of risk and is dee:ned tc have 3 .cind fenm

effect on the stability and growth potentia! of the Group’s nrofs
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F B B & Chairman’s Statement

During the year, Polycrown Group succeeded in signing up several E&M
projects in both China and Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2001, value
of contracts in hand was approximately HK$266,675,000. As regards the
environmental protection business, Polycrown has sefected several
equipment and systems as the main focus of development. The HKSAR
government’'s commitment in promoting the use of energy-efficient
products and the mainland government’s stepped up effort in tackling
problems caused by environmental pollution will definitely be conducive

to the marketing and sales of these products.

Enful Group also achieved significant growth in turnover against the
previous year. Agreements were concluded with several reputable
companies. It is our belief that these agreements will generate steady
revenue for Enful. During the year, its Bridgman fire door production
plant in Dongguan installed new production equipment in a bid to support
increasing number of orders from mainland customers. At the end of
2001, value of Enful's contracts in hand amounted to approximately
HK$35,000,000.

Prospects

Looking ahead, with China’s success in winning the right to host the
2008 Olympics, the construction industry in China is destined for a full
boom. We are confident that this will benefit the Group's specialized
construction operation. In addition, in a bid to develop business in regions
outside Hong Kong, the Group will strive to strengthen the internal risk
management and control mechanism, and to actively establish a self-
improvement system in operational management. This will, beyond any
doubt, effectively promote out operational efficiency and profitability to
a new level, as well as enable the Group to grasp any opportunity which
may emerge as the economy recovers. We will continue to closely monitor
the market development in both China and Hong Kong, ultimately further
expanding our customer network in these two areas and bringing higher

return to our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend my deepest

gratitude to the management and all our staff for their contrib/g;t.ié;h’ and
. r

hardwork. | would alsc like to call on all our shareholders, customers and

suppliers to continue to render us support and to build a better tomorrow. .

By order of the Board

Gao Dezhu
Chairman

23 April 2002
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Resuits

The Group recorded turnover of HK$315,580,000 for the year ended 31
December 2001, a decrease of 33% as compared with last year. The loss
attributable to shareholders for the year under review was
HKS$373,734,000.

For the financial year 2007, the Group incurred a loss, compared with the
profit recorded in 2000. The persistent sluggish external economies had
dealt negative impact on the performance of the Group’s subsidiaries.
During the same period, the Group had to make substantial provision for
the valuation of the ONFEM Tower, the Greater Beijing Region Expressways
Project and investment securities. However, the Group's financial position

remains sound.

Business Review
1. Manufacturing and Trading of Industrial Lubricant Products
Jaeger Oil & Chemical Holdings Limited ("Jaeger”)

During the year, Jaeger's performance was lacklustre, mainly due to a
rapid economic downturn in Europe, the United States and over the
world. A large number of overseas buyers delayed confirmation of orders
or even cancelled orders. At the same time, producers in the mainiand
shifted to less expensive brands, forcing petrochemical suppliers to slash

prices in a bid to survive in the highly competitive environment.

In 2001, Jagger actively developed the Central and Northern China markets,
setting up distribution networks in Wuxi, Changzhou, Suzhou, Wuhan
and Nanjing respectively. In recent months, as the Chinese government
embarked on policies to accelerate the development of the Western region,
Jaeger was quick to recognize the potential and subsequently set up
distribution networks in the major industrial cities of Hanzhong, Chongging
and Chengdu. As regards overseas markets, Jaeger has also taken active
steps to penetrate the Southeast Asian countries, with distribution agencies
being appointed in Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand respectively by the
end of 2001.

In addition, as the trend of Hong Kong industries shifting their
manufacturing bases to the North continues, Jaeger is currently engaging
in full-scale product development, in a bid to expand the retail and
consumer markets in Hong Kong. Since May 2001, when Jaeger
successfully re-gained the sole distributorship in Hong Kong and China of
Nichibei's range which is the top range of die-casting product series in
Japan, sales and marketing activities on the Nichibei line have been

resumed.
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In the past two years, Jaeger has also striven to explore more revenue
sources while implementing stringent cost control, with satisfactory resuits.
It is expected that business in Southern China will grow as the economic

condition in Europe and the U.S. improves.
2. Specialised Construction Contracting
Condo Group Limited [“Condo”)

The aftermath of the Asian financial crisis still looms large over Hong
Kong's property market. The application of curtain walls on local
commercial buildings sharply decreased in the recent years. This has
meant a further blow to the construction industry. Cut-throat competition
prompted several rounds of price war. In 2001, Condo recorded gross
turnover of approximately HK$138,610,000.

In response to the changing local market, Condo decides to diversify risks
and to shift its focus to the mainland market with huge potential. During
the year, Condo started to offer its consistently high quality products and
designs to mainland development projects, either with investment from
Hong Kong property developers or with participation from Hong Kong
architects. Condo has set its primary target for the coming few years on

prime curtain wall projects in major cities in China.
Polycrown Engineering (Holdings) Limited (“Polycrown’)

In 2000, Polycrown succeeded in winning two major E&M subcontracts:
for the West Residential Apartment of Beijing Oriental Plaza and Container
Port Terminal No. 9 in Hong Kong. During 2001, Polycrown concluded
contracts for several other E&M projects, including: the Chongging Times
Square, Tai Wai Depot of the KCRC East Rail and Mei Foo Station of the
KCRC West Rail. Value of contracts in hand as at 31 December 2001 was
approximately HKS266,675,000.
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As regards environmental protection business, Polycrown has accumulated
two years of experience in market development and product promotion,
and has now designated a number of equipment and systems as the
focus for future development. Amongst these, the energy-saving heat
pump and energy-saving water heater have successfully penetrated the
Hong Kong market. The marketing campaign for solar electric power
system has also been initiated. Since the government of the HKSAR is
actively promoting the use of energy-efficient products, this will be
conducive to the marketing and sales of these products. Market for
environmental protection products in China presents even more promising
opportunities. Beijing's hosting of the 2008 Olympics and China’s accession
to the WTO are destined to prompt the Chinese government to put the
issue of tackling the problems caused by environmental poliution on the
top of the agenda. Polycrown has conducted preliminary research and
testing on relevant markets and products. This is expected to bring positive
results given the right opportunity and decision.
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Enful Holdings Limited ("Enful”)

Enful's turnover for the year 2001 recorded a remarkable increase of
29%, attributable largely to a number of consolidation measures adopted
in early 2000. The current much improved operational and management
systems have greatly enhanced Enful's competitiveness, driving a big leap

in turnover.

During the year, Enful successively concluded agreements with several
well-established companies. These are expected to bring steady revenue
for Enful. Apart from its original core business {(manufacturing a complete
line of wooden doors under the brandname of “Bridgman®), Enful is also
involved in timber and other wood products; both of these are showing
benefits to Enful in terms of economies of scale. With regard to acoustic
business, Enful secured two more contracts in early 2002 for the Yuen
Long and Long Ping Stations subsequent to being awarded the contract
for the Tin Shui Wai Station of West Rail.

Enful’'s business in China has also seen steady growth, with increasing
orders coming in. In 2001, new production equipment had been installed
to meet the escalating demand and the overheads conseguently reduced.
At the end of the year, value of contracts in hand amounted to
approximately HK$35,000,000.

To coincide with future development, Enful set up a management centre
in Dongguan towards the end of 2001. The centre applies the latest
information technology to centralize information and resources
management of various offices in China and Hong Kong so as to enable
senior management to make timely and appropriate responses and
decisions with real-time information. Capitalizing on its existing network
in the greater China market, Enful will be able to effectively tap the
lucrative potential brought by China’s accession to the WTO and the
2008 Beijing Olympics. We are confident that even better performance
could be achieved in the coming year.

3. Property Development and Management
ONFEM Tower, 29 Wyndham Street, Central

As of December 2001, the occupancy rate of ONFEM Tower was
maintained at the level of 87%; tenants include international and
multinational canglomerates which maintain their representative offices
in Hong Kong. During the year, rental income and quality of tenants
remain satisfactory, bringing rental revenue of HK$12,083,000 for the
Group. In view of the structural change in the Hong Kong economy,
senior management is actively stepping up effort in leasing and estate

management.
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The Garret, a residential project in Sydney, Australia

The Group anticipates that the remaining penthouse suites will be disposed
of in the imminent future and the total investment cost will be recouped.
The estimated total sales proceeds is AS1,700,000.

Hai Tian Garden, Zhuhai, China

The unique geographical location of Zhuhai and the policy to position
itself as a hub for new and high technolfogical industries are strong
attractions to foreign investors. The resulting greater demand for residential
and commercial properties will in turn benefit the development of the

Zhuhai real estate market.

At present, the Zhuhai Hai Tian Garden project invested by the Group has
basically completed work on the substructure.

4. Infrastructure Investment
Greater Beijing Region Expressways Limited ("GBRE”)

A winding up order was issued by the High Court of the HKSAR against
Greater Beijing First Expressways Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GBRE, on [Z June 2000. Since the issue of the abovementioned winding
up order, all the financial information is withheld by the liquidator. The
Group will pay close attention to the progress of the liquidation so as to

protect the interests of the Group.

Financial Position

The Group’s financial condition remains healthy. As at 31 December 2001,
its cash on hand and bank balances amounted to approximately HKS4 12
miliion (2000: approximatiey HK$484 million).

By Order of the Board

Wang Xingdong
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 April 2002
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Board of Directors

Mr. GAC Dezhu, aged 62, was appointed as an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company in June 1998. He is also the Chairman of
China Nonferrous Metals Group (Hong Kong) Limited {("CNMG”), an
Executive Director and the Chairman of Oriental Metals (Holdings)
Company Limited ("OMC"), and the Vice Minister of the previous State
Nonferrous Metals Industry Administration ("SNMIA”). Mr. Gao graduated
from the Fushun College of Education and is a qualified senior economist
in the PRC. Prior to joining the Company, he was the Deputy General
Manager of Bank of China. Mr. Gao has over 40 years of experience in
financial management and extensive experience in operation
administration.

Mr. WANG Xingdong, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Managing Director of the Company in March 2001, responsible
for the operation of and strategic planning for the Company. He is also
an Executive Director of CNMG, an Executive Director of OMC and a Non-
executive Director of China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited.

Mr. Wang graduated from the Xiamen University, P.R.C. in 1982 with a
Bachelor of Arts degree. He then further his studies in business
management between 1987 and 1989 in the Faculty of Management of
Business Administration of Long Island University in New York, U.S.A.

Prior to joining the Company, he has been a member of senior
management of both U.S A and German corporations carrying on trading
business of metals and mineral products for many years. Mr. Wang has
extensive experience in international metals trading, investment strategies
and corporate management.

Mr. LI Shiming, aged 38, was appointed as the Executive Deputy
Managing Director of the Company in September 1998. He is alsc an
Executive Director of CNMG. Mr. Li joined previous China National
Nonferrous Metals Industry Corporation (“the previous CNNC”) in 1983,
and worked in the No. 4 Metallurgical Construction Company, the
Infrastructure Bureau and the Investment Department, responsible for
finance, investment and infrastructure. He was the Director to the Office
of the President of the previous CNNC in 1995. He joined CNMG in May
1997 and is the Deputy General Manager of the Company and the Assistant
General Manager of OMC. Mr. Li holds a Master’s Degree of Business
Administration from The Murdoch University. He has been a board member
of the China Nonferrcus Construction Association since 1989. Mr. Li was
the Secretary of China Nonferrous Infrastructure Financial Research
Association. He is a qualified accountant and economist and has extensive

experience in financial management and investment strategies.
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HFRGHAAMA Directors’ and Senior Managements’ Profile

Ms. HE Xiaoli, aged 34, was appcinted as an Executive Director of the
Company in February 200Z. She is also the General Manager of the
Finance Department of the Company. She graduated from the Economics
Department of the North China University of Technology with a Bachelor's
degree in Accounting and is also a PRC Senior Accountant and a member
of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, PRC. Prior to
Jaining the Company, she had been the Head of Business Division of the
Finance Department of the previous CNNC and the Deputy Minister of
Accounting Information Bureau. She has extensive experience in financial

management of PRC enterprises.

Ms. TAM Wai Chu, Maria, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 1997. Ms. Tam holds a
Bachelor's degree in Law from London University. She is a practising
barrister and has been in practice since 1972, Ms, Tam is currently involved
in numerous community services: the Deputy of the National Peoples’
Congress of the PRC, member of the Basic Law Committee of the Hong
Keng Special Administrative Region (the "HKSAR"}, member of the Bar
Association, board member of the Hong Kong Airport Authority and board
member of the Urban Renewal Authority. She was also appointed as a
member of Preparatory Committee of the HKSAR, Hong Kong Affairs Adviser
[PRC), Provisional Legislative Council of the HKSAR. Prior to that, she was
a member of several public administration bodies such as the Legisiative
Council, the Executive Council, and the HKSAR Basic Law Drafting
Committee. With her active involverments, Ms. Tam has extensive experience
and in-depth understanding of the PRC and Hong Kong public affairs. Ms.
Tam is also a Non-executive Director of Wing On Company International
Limited, and 4 other companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited {the "Stock Exchange”).

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED /S RA B 2K HBER QT
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HHERBEHEAEEH Directors’ and Senior Managements’ Profile

Mr. LAM Chun, Daniel, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 1997. He is the Director
of the Property Division of Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation. He is a
Registered Professional Surveyor and an Authorized Person under the
Buildings Ordinance. He has over 30 years of experience in the surveying
profession. He is a fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. He is a fellow and the
Past President (1986-1987] of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and
a fellow and the Past Chairman (1997-2000) of the Hong Kong Institute
of Arbitrators. Mr. Lam was a member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
and Chairman of its Building Committee. He was a member of the Hong
Kong Surveyors Registration Board, a consultant to the World Bank on the
Urban Land Policies Study for the PRC and a Council Member of the Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre. He had worked in the Hongkong
Land Group, Architectural Services Department, Housing Department,
Hongkong Bank Group, Sime Darby Group, China Light & Power Group
and was a former Executive Director of Tian An China investment Co. Ltd.
and the former Chairman of DCL Consultants Limited.

Senior Management

Mr. SZETOC Wai Hung, Augustine, aged 42, is the Managing Director
of Jaeger. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the University
of New South Wales, Australia and is an associate member of The [nstitute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia and the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. Mr. Szeto joined Jaeger in 1993 as the group Financial
Controller and became the General Manager in 1994, He was further
promoted to the Managing Director of Jaeger group in May 1997. He has
over 18 years of local and overseas financial and general management

experience.

Mr. CHAN Wang Kay. aged 54, is the Managing Director and the co-
founder of Jaeson Aerosol Company Limited, a subsidiary company of
Jaeger, which was established in 1993. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is an associate
member of the International Aerosol Association since 1973. He is a
professional chemist specialised in the development, manufacturing and
marketing of industrial aerosol products in Hong Kong and the PRC for
around 30 years.
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HERGEARM A Directors’ and Senior Managements' Profile

Mr. WYONG lat Tong. aged 40, is a Director of Condo and President of
Shanghai Jin Qiac Condo Decoration Engineering Co. Ltd. He has about
20 years of experience in construction business in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC.

Mr. YU Lap On, Stephen, aged 44, is a Director and one of the founders
of Condo in 1980. He has over 22 years of experience in running building
materials and metal work business and is respansible for the business of

Condo in Hong Kong, Macau and Guangdong regions.

Mr. NG Tze Kwan, Eric, aged 48, is a Director and one of the founders
of Condo in 1980 and the General Manager of Shanghai Jin Qiao Cando
Decoration Engineering Co. Ltd. He has 22 years of experience in the
curtain wall business in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

Mr. CHAN Sun Nung, Simon, aged 42, joined Condo in 1989 and is
now a Director and the Technical Director of Condo group. He graduated
from the Department of Civil Engineering, the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has 22 years of experience in curtain wall design and

technical management.

Mr. LEUNG Pok Ching, aged 45, is the Deputy Chairman and General
Manager of Polycrown. He took over the management of Polycrown
group in 1990. Mr. Leung graduated from the University of Kennedy-
Western, California, USA and obtained a Bachelor's degree in Engineering.
He is an associate of Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineer,
a member of American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-
conditioning Engineers, a member of Hong Kong Electrical Contractors’
Association Ltd. and an Incorporated Engineer of British Engineering
Council (CEl], and is a licensed electrician of Hong Kong (COHO class).
Mr. Leung has more than 27 years of experience in mechanical and
electrical engineering and has been involved in the design, supervision,
contracting and management of various engineering projects in Hong
Kong, Macau and the PRC.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED // R A S B ETDER LR
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HERFHEAAM A Directors’ and Senior Managements’ Profile

Mr. LIU Ying Yeung, Hilter, aged 43, is a Director and the Deputy
General Manager of Polycrown. He joined Polycrown group in 1996. He
is an associate member of Chartered Institution of Building Services
Engineer, a fellow member of Institute of Plumbing and an Incorporated
Engineer of British Engineering Council (CEl]. Mr. Liu has more than 25
years of experience in mechanical and electrical engineering and has
been involved in the design, supervision, contracting and management

of various engineering projects in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

Mir. KEUNG Chee Cheong, aged 47, was appointed as a Director of
Enful in 1993 and became the Managing Director in 1998. He holds
Bachelor's degrees in Mechanical Engineering and Commerce
(Management Science| from the University of Ottawa and the University
of Windsor, Canada respectively. He has been a member of the Institute
of Marine Engineers (Chartered Engineer) since 1986. Mr. Keung has
over 10 years of experience in management position of the projects for
land and property development in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. MAK Yun Wo, Simon, aged 52, was appointed as a Director of
Enful in 1992 and is responsible for the manufacturing and marketing of
fire doors, fire rated glazing as well as decoration and fit-out contracting.
He has over 20 years of working experience in marketing, manufacturing

and trading businesses in Hong Kong and the PRC.




HEEADTEIR-TF_FEA=+—
REEAFFTHS+SBEEE TSR
E-VeRRSERES N LR RERT

BRBFAE

1.

LAEIBTHEE

EERE-FT-F--B=+-AL
EEZEBREAMBES HECH
EREBAEE -

ERRTEENETES WS -

HTEFARZERANEG  URES
EEEZRBAZTETNESE -

BH

B
Iz =
EE

REGLRFIRRERZZHMNE
EZ#e -

{?Z%"T’%%‘J%IE\ ' %J§ﬁ@@’\%ﬁ1@u‘ﬁ;§
HEATEABE

[Eh3E

fa) E T X5(C)ERZRBRT - — A R m
BREHEARLRESERNEHER
(EERTX510)8)  TEAR2AZ
—YIENBERE - BITREBEARDA
Ag A e 2 BEANAR (D - RRRT Sz sl 3 AT
RFETRLSEENZERES  HE
KRR

(o] EX5@B 2t EEEEAQRES
ENREEBAMAI TR ELAIETRSE
BHBREERRITERERIZER

e HERNERE

o) "ATBEREEKRIELXS500)8R ZH0E
FrEdE A E R IEH S ERARE
(T E AR EEREMEERES)
ZIRAEERE  THEBB @A R
BIRAREERBBERZDEITRA
HERLBEBES 2=+ R(bb(aEn
FELZEEAQTRESITRAEA
REBERREBE)ALCFNEBRBARIERE
REBRZALERAABELE (&

A Brighter Future Ahead

B 3 AE A & M %5 Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the
Shareholders of the Company will be held at Song Room, 7th Floor, The

Dynasty Club, South West Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 31 May 2002 at 10:30 a.m. for the

following purposes:

1.

To receive and consider the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2001.

To re-elect the retiring Director and to fix the remuneration of Directors.

To fix a maximum number of Directors at 8 and to authorize the

Directors to appoint additional Directors up to such maximum number.

To re-appoint Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co. as the Auditors for the

ensuing year and to fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“THAT

(a} subject to paragraph 5(c) below, the exercise by the Directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period (as defined in paragraph
5(d) below| of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

ib

the approval in paragraph 5(a) above shall authorize the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant
offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise
of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

[c} the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) by the Directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph 5(aj above, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined in paragraph 5(d} below]
(ii} the exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under the
terms of any warrants issued by the Company or any securities
which are convertible into shares of the Company or (i} an issue

of shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED /9 R A ER2EETER L T
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time being adopted for the grant or issue to officers and/or
employees of the Company and/or any of its subsidiary companies
of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment
of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of
the Company, shall not exceed the aggregate of (aa) 20 per cent.
of the total nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
in issue on the date of the passing of this Resolution plus (bb) (if
the Directors of the Company are so authorized by a separate
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
repurchased by the Company subsequent to the passing of such
resolution {up to a maximum equivalent to 10 per cent. of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
in issue on the date of this Resolution} and the said approval to the
Directors in paragraph 5(a) shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company:

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be
held; or

{iii} the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
Resolution by ordinary resolution of the sharehaolders in general
meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or other securities open for
a period fixed by the Directors of the Company to the shareholders
on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their
shareholdings as art that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient
in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of any recognized
regulatory body or any stock exchange).”
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6. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"THAT

()

g

(c)

subject to paragraph 6(b) below, the exercise by the Directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period (as defined in paragraph
6(c} below) of all the powers of the Company to repurchase its
own shares (including redeemable shares] on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or any other stock
exchange on which the securities of the Company may be listed
and recognized by the Securities and Futures Commission and the
Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable faws and/or the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of
any other stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and

fs hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital repurchased by
the Company pursuant to paragraph 6(a) above shall not exceed
10 per cent. of the total nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this Resolution
and the said approval to the Directors in paragraph 6{a) above
shall be limited accordingly;

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Refevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i} the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the

Company,

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be
held; or

(ili) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
Resolution by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general

meeting.”

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2] RABEEEER A F
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7. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT conditional upon Resolution No. 6 above being passed, the
aggregate nominal amount of the number of shares in the capital of
the Company which are repurchased by the Company under the
authority granted to the Directors as mentioned in Resolution No. 6
above shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital that may be allotted by the Directors pursuant to Resolution

TABRBHEEHEBTRAEDES
EADZ+ o

No. 5 above, provided that the amount of share capital repurchased
by the Company shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the total nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the date of
this Resolution.”

8 ERIEXMEMEIE- 8. To transact any other business.

EERE By order of the Board
EE=R Wang Xingdong
EERAET Managing Director

EE ZEEZFHNAE-+=H Hong Kong, 23 April 2002

Bt st - Notes:

REEEBEHERA

AREEEFELrOAESRIREZRE  HERE
ER—TUREURAERELEERTE
BREE

THRE

B -RERREBERTLRFBRE -

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitied to appoint one
or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote on his/her behalf. A proxy need

not be a member of the Company.

REECERBRENBEEEERAREIEES 2. To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if
SEAMBEXS (NE)EHAEAEEE any. under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such power of
BzAEEEETNEREXHELS - BERRE attorney or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s principal place of
REGZIEEBRTHBEN /N EATEESR business at 11th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham Road South,
NRIZEELHEME - It BEFENELR) Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
HRNEEORTEEIBRAEIE - A AE appointed for holding the Meeting or adjourned Meeting.

e

AREBRE_FEFRAATNAHESHC 3. The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 28 May 2002 to Friday,

—_EFRR=Z+—BEHAIL(BE
EREMB)HREERERDBFAERT
HoMRHEF LUBEERZBRERE - £
EREERDEZZEFPRE (WREREE

31 May 2002, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected. In order to qualify for attending the meeting convened by the
above, all share certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or

separately, must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Registrars,

B HEX)REBEAR_EE -_FHAZ Central Registration Hong Kong Limited at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Fioor,
THHEH-TFURERXEEAREZEE Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.
BROBPELREESPABEELERS on Monday, 27 May 2002.

Al it AEBEE KERISIFES AL
178B1712-1716E »
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#H P G B F Report of the Directors

EESEUERERE_ZET—FF+ /A =+ The Board of Directors would like to submit their annual report together

—HIFEZFERLREERITBFHRE - with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2001.

FEXEK Principal activities

KRR EBERRBREER - FWE LA The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
REEESREMBESNUBBEEM T activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 13

13- to the financial statements.
FEREFRHES Major customers and suppliers
FEEFRHEERRAGBREEERERH The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
EERERBEZAMNT 1o the major customers and suppliers during the financial year is as follows:
EEEEREZTIL
Percentage of the Group's total
HER REE&
Sales Purchases
—EE-F Z—BZTEZF ZEB-§ ZEZTEF
2001 2000 2001 2000
BREF . The largest customer 14% 19%
BEREFR Five largest customers
i B8 in aggregate 43% 37%
BRAMER The largest supplier 6% 37%
BEREAMHER Five largest suppliers
b2 %8 in aggregate 12% 94%

RAFEEAGHE  SESHEBBAL(E At no time during the year, have the Directors, their associates (as defined
ZRTEMSTSMERLAES TR in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
(TEMmRBD) R EBERMERMESS L Hong Kong Limited ("Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders of the Company
BIRASWIA L2 RN BRE  HEHEE il (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the

BEPREERZ g - Company's share capital] had any interests in the above customers and
suppliers.
L Financial statements

AEBSE_EF-E+_R=+—-BLF The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2001 and the
BEZEE URAQAFEAEERZBEZY state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out

BRI BER T BRRFEITEEIONE » in the financial statements on pages 37 to 109.
BEEQ@TRBRFEE_ZEE—H+FR= The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ToBLEFEZERBE(ZZETEF &) o ended 31 December 2001 (2000: Nil}
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Charitable donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HK$29,000 {2000: HK$28.,000/.

Property, plant and equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out
in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the Company's share capital are set out in Note 25 to the

financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in Note 26 to the

financial statements.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Gao Dezhu

Wang Xingdong (appointed on 30 March 2001)
Li Shiming

He Xiaoli {appointed on 27 February 2002)

Tam Wai Chu, Maria (Non-executive/

Lam Chun, Daniel {Non-executive)

Cui Guisheng fresigned on 30 March 20017)

Ms. He Xiaoli retires from office in accordance with Article 102 of the
Company’s Bye-Laws, being eligible, offers herself for re-election.

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria retires from office in accordance with Article
1{A) of the Company’s Bye-Laws, being eligible, offers herself for re-
election.
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Directors’ service contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company and any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Directors’ interests in securities and rights
to acquire securities

As at 31 December 2001, none of the directors or the chief executive of
the Company had any interests in any equity or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations of the Company (within
the meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (“SDI
Ordinance’}) which are required to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
section 28 of the SDI Ordinance (including interests which they are deemed
or taken to have under section 31 of the SDI Ordinance or Part | of the
Schedule to the SDI Ordinance) or which are required, pursuant to section
29 of the SDI Ordinance, to be entered in the register referred to therein
or are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies, to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange.

During the year, none of the directors or the chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age was granted
or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt securities

of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

Notes: As at the date of this report, Ms, He Xiaoli, who was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 27 February 2002, holds 20,000

ordinary shares in the Company

Convertible securities, options, warrants or
similar rights

The Company had no outstanding options, convertible securities, warrants

or other similar rights as at 31 December 2001.

There was no repurchase or exercise of options and convertible securities

during the year.
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Substantial interests in the share capital of
the Company

As at 31 December 2001, according to the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance, the Company
was notified that the following shareholders were interested in 10% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company:

HE 81T
BR@aas
fri5 2B
BGeHAB Percentage of
i3 Number of total issued
BREABB Name of shareholder Notes shares held shares
EEEREEIXR" State Nonferrous Metals
Industry Administration * ! 416,009,928 53.87%
China Nonferrous Metals China Nonferrous Metals
Holdings {Cook Islands) Holdings (Cook Islands)
Limited Limited I 416,009,928 53.87%
FEEeE (FB) China Nonferrous Metals
EEERAA Group (Hong Kong]
(ThEER(EE) 1) Limited ("CNMG") * Z 416,009,928 53.87%
Haka International Limited Haka International Limited
(THakal) ("Haka") 383,188,208 49.62%
HaE - Notes:
B FESeEFE2EZHE = Please refer to the Note on page no. 2.

1, RERBEEDES  ZFRREERE
A i Hakat¥ B Z 383,188,208 15 &
HAEEE(EFAEHE232821,72008
Bz B2 -

2. PR FFH 32,821, 72008 1B o - R EE
BB (ER)THERAEERHakafIEH
2. 383,188,208% iR 15 Z B -
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1. By virtue of the SDI Ordinance, these companies are deemed to be interested
in the 383,188,208 shares held by Haka and 32,821,720 shares held by
CNMG.

2. In addition to 32,821,720 shares held by itself, CNMG is deemed to be
interested in the 383,188,208 shares held by Haka.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, or any of their subsidiaries was a party, in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Management contracts

Save as disclosed in Note (b} on page 31 and Note 32 on page 107 of
the annual report, no contract for management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’'s listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Bank loans, overdrafts and other
borrowings

Particulars of loans and overdrafts of the Group as at 31 December 2001

are set out in Notes 22 and 23 to the financial statements

Interest capitalised

The amount of interest capitalised by the Group during the year is set out
in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on page 112 of the annual report.

Properties

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group are

shown on pages 110 to 111 of the annual report,
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Employees

As at 31 December 2001, the Group employed 657 staff. The amount of
the remunerations paid during the year was approximately
HKS71,267,000. The Company adopted a pay policy in line with market
practice, and remuneration was determined with reference to the
performance and experience of individual employees.

The shareholders of the Company approved a share option scheme for
executives {the “Scheme”) on 30 September 1993. The Scheme was tailor-
made for the executives and senior staff of the Group. Under the Scheme,
the Directors of the Company have the authority at their discretion to
invite executives and senior staff of the Group to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company according to the terms and conditions

of the Scheme.

The Scheme is intended to encourage executives and staff of the Group
to contribute to maintaining and where possible improving the share
price of the Company in the long run. At the same time, the Scheme
serves as a recognition to those staff with excellent performance and

helps the Group to retain experienced and capable employees.

Meanwhile, the Group is well aware of the importance of quality
management and specialist expertise as key factors in achieving corporate
success. While strengthening its operational management, the Group
also encourages self-advancement and attracts great importance to the
provision of various forms of professional training to employees at different
levels. Through appropriate training, employees’ skills can be enhanced
and their personal potential can be developed. Provision of training also
help to increase their job satisfaction and loyalty to the Company.

Pension scheme

Details of the Group pension scheme are set out in Note 30 to the

financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-

Laws or the law in Bermuda.
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Code of best practice

The Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice (the “Code of
Best Practice”} as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governhing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange throughout the year ended 31
December 2001 except that the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term as they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company

in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

Audit committee

In March 1999, the Board of Directors resolved to establish an audit
committee with written terms of reference and appointed two Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel and Ms.
Tam Wai Chu, Maria, as members of the committee pursuant to the Code
of Best Practice. Durng the year, the audit committee convened five

meetings and made various recommendations.

Auditors

Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co, the auditors of the Company, will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

Connected transactions

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group entered into

the following connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules:

(a) On 16 August 1999, ONFEM Finance Limited ["OFL"}, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, principally engaged in financing
activities within the Group, entered into a loan agreement with
CNMG under which OFL made an advance of HK$26,000,000
[the “Loan”) to CNMG at an interest rate of 2% over the prime rate

per annum which was repayable on 29 February 2000.

On 29 February 2000, CNMG made on the maturity date a
repayment of all the interest accrued to the Loan to OFL. The date
of repayment of the principal of the Loan was extended for a
further six months at an interest rate of 2% over the prime rate per
annum pursuant to a supplemental agreement entered into
between OFL and CNMG on 29 February 2000. The Loan and the
accrued interest thereon were repayable on 31 August 2000.
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On 31 August 2000, CNMG made on the maturity date a repayment
of alt the interest accrued to the Loan to OFL. The date of repayment
of the principal of the Loan was extended for a further three
months at an interest rate of 2% over the prime rate per annum
pursuant to a supplemental agreement entered into between OFL
and CNMG on 31 August 2000. The Loan and the accrued interest
thereon were repayable on 30 November 2000.

On 30 November 2000, CNMG made on the maturity date a
repayment of all the interest accrued to the Loan to OFL. The date
of repayment of the principal of the Loan was extended for a
further six months at an interest rate of 2.5% over the prime rate
per annum pursuant to a supplemental agreement entered into
between OFL and CNMG on 30 November 2000. The Loan and
the accrued interest thereon were repayable on 31 May 2001.

On 31 May 2001, CNMG made on the maturity date a repayment
of all the interest accrued to the Loan to OFL. The date of repayment
of the principal of the Loan was extended for a further six months
at an interest rate of 2.5% over the prime rate per annum pursuant
to a supplemental agreement entered into between OFL and
CNMG on 31 May 2001. The Loan and the accrued interest thereon
were repayable on 30 November 2001.

On 30 November 2001, CNMG made on the maturity date a
repayment of all the interest accrued to the Loan and part of the
principal of the Loan amounting to HK$2,750,000 to OFL. The
date of repayment of the remaining balance of the Loan amounting
to HKS$23,250,000 (the “Remaining Balance’}] was extended for a
further six moniths at an interest rate of 2.5% over the prime rate
per annum pursuant to a supplemental agreement entered into
between OFL and CNMG on 30 November 2000. The Remaining
Balance and the accrued interest thereon are repayable on 31
May 2002.

During the year, OFL earned interest income of approximately
HKS 2,451,000 (2000: approximately HKS$2,936,000) from the Loan
and the Remaining Balance. The outstanding balance of the
Remaining Balance and the interest accrued thereon as at 31
December 2001 amounted to approximately HK$23,803,000
[2000: approximately HKS$27,101,000 being the aggregate of the
Loan and the interest accrued thereon). As at 31 December 2001,
a full provision was made for the outstanding loan.
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Connected transactions (contd)

L

The Company and CNMG entered into an agreement on 12 May
2000 (the "Future Service Agreement” in respect of the sharing of
administrative costs fof administration services rendered by CNMG
for the period fram | January 2000 to 31 December 2002 (the
"On-Going Connected Transactions”}). Based on the amounts
estimated as specified in the cash flow forecast of CNMG for the
year 2000, the maximum amounts to be paid by the Company
were expected to be not more than HKS5,697,500, HKS6,288,750
and HKS$6,933,750 respectively for the years 2000, 2001 and
2002. The amount shared by the Company for the year 2001 was
HK$2,863,000 (2000: HKS$3,830,000).

On 23 November 2001,

(i) a sale and purchase agreement was entered into between
Best Pearl Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as purchaser of the one part and Oriental
Goldbeam Shipping Inc. ("OGSI”), a fellow subsidiary of
CNMG, as vendor of the other part for the sale and purchase
of the residential property located at Unit 611, 6th Floor,
Block N, Kornhill, 14-16 Hong On Street, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$2,000,000;

(ii) a sale and purchase agreement was entered into between
Bright Circle Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as purchaser of the one part and OGSI as vendor
of the other part for the sale and purchase of the residential
property located at Unit 6, 8th Floor, Block 2, Heng Fa
Chuen, No. 100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan, Hong Kong at
a consideration of HKS$1,900,000.
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Connected transactions (conrd,

(d)

On 15 April 2002,

fi)

fif)

a set-off agreement was entered into amongst ONFEM
Company Limited {"OCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Zhuhai Shining Metals Group Inc. {“Shining
Metals”), Zhuhai (Oriental) Blue Horrison Properties
Company Limited ("ZOBHP") and Tian He Orien Met
Property Co., Ltd. {"Tian He") whereby the parties agreed
that, out of the Reimbursement Amount {as defined in the
Company's press announcement dated 17 April 2002} in
the sum of RMBZ5,000,000 payable by OCL to Shining
Metals on the Due Date (as defined in the Company's
press announcement dated 17 April 2002}, OCL should
pay to ZOBHP on the Due Date the sum of RMB7,500,000
with the intention that such payment by OCL to ZOBHP
should set off {1} the sum of RMB7,500,000 (being a portion
of the Reimbursement Amount) payabie by OCL to Shining
Metals, which in turn set off (2] the sum of RMB7,500,000
owed by Shining Metals to Tian He and which in turn set
off {3) the sum of RMB7,500,000 owed by Tian He to
ZOBHP;

a set-off agreement was entered into amongst OCL, Shining
Metals, ZOBHP and Zhuhai Xingyuan Industrial and Trading
Development Co., Ltd. {"Xingyuan”| whereby the parties
agreed that, out of the Reimbursement Amount in the sum
of RMB25,000,000 payable by OCL to Shining Metals on
the Due Date, OCL should pay to ZOBHP on the Due Date
the sum of RMB4,625,566.56 with the intention that such
payment by OCL to ZOBHP should set off (1] the sum of
RMB4,625,566.56 (being a portion of the Reimbursement
Amount) payable by OCL to Shining Metals, which in turn
set off [2) the sum of RMB4,625,566.56 owed by Shining
Metals to Xingyuan and which in turn set off (3} the sum
of RMB4,352,799.94 owed by Xingyuan to ZOBHP.
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Connected transactions (contd)

ZOBHP is owned as to 80% by OCL and 20% by Shining Metals.
Shining Metals is a substantial shareholder of ZOBHP and is
therefore a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company.

The set-off arrangements contemplated under the above

agreements took effect from 31 December 2001.

The Directors confirmed that the above connected transactions with the
exception of the transaction detailed under Note (b} above for which a
waiver had been obtained from the Stock Exchange had been previously
announced in the newspapers by the Company and are praoperly disclosed
in the annual report in accordance with Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Group also entered into following related party transactions:

(e] During the year, the Group made various loan advances in
aggregate of HK$40,691,171 to Condo Engineering (Chinal
Limited, Enful Engineering Limited, Enful Design & Build Limited,
Polycrown Engineering Limited and ZOBHP, all of which are non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and earned interest of
approximately HKS7,988,000. The advances are charging interest
ranging from prime rate plus 0.5% to prime rate plus 4% per
annum. At 31 December 2001 approximately HKS117,918,000

was outstanding.

By Order of the Board

Wang Xingdong
Managing Director-

Hong Kong, 23 April 2002
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)

ANDERSEN

Arthur Andersen & Co

21st Floor Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen's Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITORS REPORT
TO THE SHAREHCLDERS OF ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 37 to 109
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, except
that the scope of our work was limited as explained below.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied
and adeqguately disclosed.
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BB BT % & Auditors’ Report

Basis of opinion (conrq)

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order tc provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. However, the evidence available to us was limited

pecause of the following matter:

As explained in Note 14(a) to the accompanying financial
statements, the Group holds approximately 15.3 per cent of the
common stock of Greater Beijing Region Expressways Limited
("GBRE"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
with an original investment cost of approximately HK$244 million.
The carrying value of this investment was approximately HKS$ 122
million as at 31 December 2000. The Group made a further
provision of approximately HKS 122 million during the year such
that this investment was fully provided for as at 31 December
2007, Pursuant to a winding up order issued by the High Court
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against Greater
Beijing First Expressways Limited {"GBFE"}, a key principal subsidiary
of GBRE, on 12 June 2000, all the financial information of GBFE
was withheld by the liquidator. As such, the Group was unable to
provide adequate financial information for us to assess the fair
value of GBRE or GBFE. There were no other satisfactory audit
procedures that we could adopt to obtain sufficient evidence to
determine the fair value of the investment.

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Qualified opinion arising from limitation of
audit scope

Except for any adjustments that might have been found to be
necessary had we been able to obtain sufficient evidence to
determine the fair value of the investment in GBRE, in our opinion
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2001
and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In respect alone of the limitation on our work relating to the above
matter:

a we have not obtained all the information and explanations
that we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit;
and

@ we were unable to determine whether proper books of
account had been kept.

Arthur Andersen & Co
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
23 April 2002
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55 £ Wk 28 ¢ Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2001

A Brighter Future Ahead

(LB AREN) [Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—EE-F —EEEE
2001 2000
ff £ T Fr
Notes {$°000) ($'000)
- Turnover 3 315,580 470,641
HERE Cost of sales [297,006) [364,674)
£ 7 Gross profit 18,574 105,967
Hib g A Other revenues 4&32 26,881 40,309
DHEER Distribution costs {3.837) (9111)
THEA Administrative expenses 32 {205,717} (142,678)
HfEEmx Other operating expenses (1.823) (4,792
ERREYEFBE WS (Loss) Gain on revaluation of
investment properties 12(d} (36,500) 31,300
FEERSRERSB Provision for impairment
in value of non-trading
securities 14 (140,047) —
EEERAREERE Provision for loan to
intermediate holding
company 32 {23,803) —
Hit BB REEREE  Provision for bad and
doubtful debt - a sundry debtor {20,000} —
YMETSHERBEZBE  Reversal of provision for
impairment in value of
deposit on property 12,000 —
BE/HEWBATWE  Gain on liquidation/disposal
of g subsidiary 13/e) 200 1,815
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HEW B R (4) Consolidated Income Statement (cont’d)

BE-BRE-F+A=t+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2001

(LB BEN) {Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—EE-F —EEEF
2001 2000
liiEr i T
Notes 1$°000) ($°000)
& (5518) = T {Loss) Profit from operations (374,072) 22,810
1 7% B 7R Finance costs 5 (8,731) (14,505)
R 35 AT (85 18 e Rl {Loss) Profit before tax 6 (382,803 8,305
FRBEEX Income tax expense 7 [13,944) (2,391}
MR EES)ER (Loss) Profit after tax {396,747) 5914
LEREERS Minority interests 23,013 5,611
FEEBR G FH Net (loss) profit for the year 3&8 (373,734) 11,525
L= Dividends 9 — —
SRER(EER) BF Basic (losses) earnings per share 10 (48.40) cents 1.49 cents
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3% & B 4 3B 8 % ¢ Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses

BHE-EE-E+-A=Z+-BLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2001

(LB REN [Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—EE-F —EE2EHF
2001 2000
Fr F
{$°000) ($°000)
FEERSEMLHE Deficit on revaluation of non-trading securities — (18,693)

ERIAREELFHERA Impairment in value of non-trading securities

2HEERHREE previously recorded under investment
revaluation reserve 18,693 —

REBZIIMER BT Exchange difference on translation of

BRRBELECERESE financial statements of overseas subsidiaries (1,397) 862
YEERERAERZZ Net gain (loss) not recognised

W (ER) F8 in income statement 17,296 (17.831)
FE (BB X FHE Net (loss) profit for the year (373,734) 11,525
ERFNBEERBE Total recognised gains and losses {356,438) (6,306)
R HEWE QSR Goodwill released on liguidation/disposal

W2 BB of subsidiaries — 28
MEBLARER HEWR Realisation of contributed surpius

SRBRARG on liquidation/disposal of a subsidiary {159) (1,847)
MBARER HER Realisation of cumulative translation reserve

SIRATTE LB on liquidation/disposal of subsidiaries — (144)

(356,597) (8,269)
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BEH5EFE B FF Consolidated Balance Sheet

 ZE_2E-F+A=1t-HLEE
(B REN)

As at 31 December 2001
[(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—BEB-F —EBZEF
2001 2000
okt Fr Ft
Notes [$°000] ($°000)
EERARE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBHEE Non-current assets
NE BERSEEB Property, plant and equipment 12 278,582 325,289
ERIR Construction in progress 20 —
FEERH Non-trading securities 14 34,619 155,973
HEmwEgE Other assets 15 2,273 1,837
315,494 483,099
REBEE Current assets
78 Inventories 16 247,486 200,012
BUEBERRTDER Loan to intermediate holding
company 32 —_— 27,101
EWRZKBLARE Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 37 41 1
BRI HIREERR Amounts due from minority
investors 32 7,376 10,021
EWREFREHEHERTRIE Trade and other receivables 17 150,463 252,398
BREFZEHMNIEEE Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work 8 33,877 121,887
BERS Trading securities 19 19,861 18,850
2EFER Pledged deposits 28 132,598 118,516
BERBTER Cash and bank deposits 20 279,460 364,851
871,162 1,113,647
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(LLBBAREN)

A Brighter Future Ahead

WEEFERER () Consolidated Balance Sheet (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2001

{Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=23 s —EEEF
2001 2000
B EF Fr F T
Notes ($'000) ($°000)
TEEE Current liabilities
ENfEEERLIRNE Amount due to intermediate
holding company 32 6 1,705
EEEANEBLQBFRIE Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries —_ 307
BNLEREERE Amount due to a minority
investor 37 12,204 23,481
BRI REMEMNRE  Trade and other payables 21 221,985 229,565
BEREFZEHNIRES Gross amounts due to
customers for contract work 18 32,214 38,323
MBENEBZEIEELS  Current portion of obligations
under finance leases 23 116 83
EAHE Taxation payable 37,523 19,663
BHIEE Short-term borrowings 22 204,515 189,729
508,563 502,856
REBEERE Net current assets 362,599 610,791
EERBERABEE Total assets less current
liabilities 678,093 1,093,890
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BEEBERBER (#]) Consolidated Balance Sheet (coni’d)

BE_ZZ-—EFE+-A=1T-HLEE As at 31 December 2001

(LB REN) [Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—99-%F —BEEF
2001 2000
finiz3 Fx T
Notes ($'000) ($°000]
EkEBHERE Non-current liabilities
RHEE Long-term borrowings 23 3,374 40,092
EEFE Deferred taxation 24 —_— —
HEHMEER Other liabilities 2,584 2,398
5,958 42,490
LPEREERR Minority interests 36,016 58.684
EERE NET ASSETS 636,119 992,716
EXR#EE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
IR A& Share capital 25 77,218 77,218
e Reserves 26 558,901 915,498
636,119 992,716

EEgN_EE-FN0NBE-+=8% Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 April 2002 and signed

B XBHUATESESRREFEHE on behalf of the Board by
FER B
Wang Xingdong He Xiaoli
EE EE
Director Director
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& # £ (% 7 Balance Sheet
BE-_ZE-F+-A=1t—-BLEE As at 31 December 2001
(LBEREN {Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
o —gg-f —z23s
2001 2000
HtiE Fr T
Notes 1$'000) [$°000)
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
RHBARZRE Investments in subsidiaries 13 421,369 607.865
EERE Other assets 5 1,492 1,492
422,861 609,357
REBEE Current assets
H i FE W R Other receivables 17 1,046 22,631
EHEBER Pledged deposits 28 114,168 89,019
ReEREBITEX Cash and bank deposits 20 216,540 326,379
331,754 438,029
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BEEAEFR (4) Balance Sheet (cont’d)

BE-RE-H+-A=Zt+t-HLEE

As at 31 December 2001

(LB REN) [Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—g8-F —FEEF
2001 2000
g3 Fr F
Notes 1$°000) ($'000)
FEHEE Current liabilities
EBNEBERABDTRE Amount due to intermediate
holding company -_ 1,699
R AMB N EIE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries — 24
FEMAERREMEMRRIE  Trade and other payables 21 100,927 4,051
100,927 5,774
REBEEEE Net current assets 230,827 432,255
EERE NET ASSETS 653,688 1,041,612
EXxRBRER CAPITAL AND RESERVES
R = Share capital 25 77,218 77,218
A Reserves 26 576,470 964,394
653,688 1,041,612

ESER-_BEZE_EWMA-FT=8BK
o WAHUTESRRESEES .

IER
Wang Xingdong
EFE

Director
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Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 April 2002 and signed

on behalf of the Board by

N
He Xiaoli
Bz

Director
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(LIB®REN)

A Brighter Future Ahead

5B & 7 F Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2001

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EE—F —EETE
2001 2000
gz F Tt
Notes ($°000) ($°000)
BEERES Net cash outfiow from
il operating activities 27(a) [99,396) [172,987)
REGBRUHERR Returns on investments
and servicing of finance
[SAL &=} Interest received 24,509 34,822
[SEPENESE interest paid (14,391} (14,505)
BHLETHRERE Dividends received from
listed investments 885 729
RERBRMBREAZ Net cash inflow from returns
BERAFHE on investments and
servicing of finance 11,003 21,046
BiE Taxation
2R EBREH Hong Kong profits tax paid (86) (6,660)
CEREEERNSESH Hong Kong profits tax refunded 1,451 1,324
28 IE Overseas tax paid {2,560) (1,726)
{1,195) (7,062)
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HEEREREBFE (4]) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (cont’d)

BE-_FEZ-H5+T-A=+-BLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2001

(UBEREM) (Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—EB-F —EEEF
2001 2000
Kiat Fr Fr
Notes {$'000) {$°000)
REEE Investing activities
EHERIERIEA Payment for construction
in progress (20} —
BANE HERZE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (8,986) {10,607)
HEWME - BER Proceeds from disposal
BRBEBMIE of property, plant and
equipment 249 1,805
BABEERS Purchase of trading securities — (15,564)
MEBAREE HE Net cash outflow from
Behd 28 liquidation/disposal of a
subsidiary 27(c) {62) (2,174)
RETHRENEEH Net cash outflow from
investing activities (8,819) (26,540)
AMERIRER L FE Net cash outflow before
financing (98,407) (185,543)
BE Financing 27(d)
WBEE New borrowings 57,692 65,089
HEBEEEEH Net repayment of borrowings {139,762) (77,420)
PEFEEEZTE Capital contribution from a
minority investor 312 1,623
MERTREFSE Net cash outflow from financing (81,758 {10,708)
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HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
FORM OF PROXY

(Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday, 31 May 2002)

I/We

of

being the registered holder(s) of (Note 1) shares
of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the above-named company
(the “Company”) hereby appoint the Chairman of the Annual

General Meeting (Note 2) or

as my/our proxy, to act for me/us at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company (or at any adjournment thereof) of the holders
of the shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company to
be held at Song Room, 7th Floor, The Dynasty Club, South West
Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Friday, 31 May 2002 at 10:30 a.m. for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, passing the Ordinary Resolutions
as set out in the Notice convening the said Meeting and at such
Meeting (or at any adjournment thereof) to vote for me/us and
in my/our name(s) in respect of the said Resolutions as
hereunder indicated or, if no such indication is given, as my/

our proxy thinks fit.

1. To adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 31 December, 2001.

2. (a) To re-elect Ms. He Xiaoli as a Director.
(b)  To re-elect Ms Tam Wai Chu, Maria as a Director.
(¢) To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the
remuneration of the Directors.
3. To fix the maximum number of Directors at 8 and to

authorise the Board of Directors to appoint additional

Directors up to such maximum number.

4, To re-appoint Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co as Auditors
for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix

their remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot
additional shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase
shares of the Company not exceeding 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

7. To extend the general mandate on the issue of additional
shares.
Dated this day of , 2002.

Shareholder's signature: (Note 3)

-

For

4

Bz 44

Against*
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Notes:

1.

[

Please insert the number of shares in the Company of HK$0.10
each registered in vour name(s). If no number is inserted, this
form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares of the

Company registered in your name(s).

If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman of the
Meeting as your proxy, please delete the words “the Chairman of
the Annual General Meeting” and print the name and address of

the person you wish to appoint in the space provided.

This form of proxy must be signed by the appointor or his attorney
duly authorised in writing, or, if the appointor is a corporation the
form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or under
the hand of some officer of the corporation duly authorised in that
behalf. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one of
them is sufficient but the names of all the joint holders must be

stated.

Except if otherwise instructed above the proxy will vote or abstain
as he thinks fit in relation to all businesses of the Annual General

Meeting.

This proxy form and the power of attorney, or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed (or a notarially certified copy thereof)
must be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business at
11/F., China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham Road South,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before

the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this document, makes no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Board of Directors: Registered Office:

GAO Dezhu (Chairman) Cedar House

WANG Xingdong (Managing Director) 41 Cedar Avenue

LI Shiming (Deputy Managing Director) Hamilton HM12

HE Xiaoli Bermuda

TAM Wai Chu, Maria* .

LAM Chun, Daniel* Principal place of business:

* Independent Non-executive Directors 11th Floor
: China Minmetals Tower
79 Chatham Road South
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

23rd April, 2002
To the shareholders of the Company

Dear Sir or Madam,

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
IN RELATION TO
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

At the last annual general meeting of ONFEM Holdings Limited (the “Company”) held on 27th June, 2001, the Directors were
granted a general mandate to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase its own shares and the said mandate will
expire at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 31st May, 2002 (the “2002 Annual
General Meeting”) or on revocation or variation of the resolution approving the grant of such mandate by an ordinary
resolution of shareholders of the Company, whichever is the earlier.

This is an explanatory statement given to all the shareholders of the Company relating to an ordinary resolution to be proposed
at the 2002 Annual General Meeting to grant to the Directors a general mandate to exercise the powers of the Company to
repurchase its own shares (the “Repurchase Mandate”).

This explanatory statement contains the information required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for your consideration of the Repurchase
Mandate.

LISTING RULES

The Listing Rules permit companies with a primary listing on the Stock Exchange to repurchase their own securities on the
Stock Exchange subject to certain restrictions, one of which is: repurchases must be funded entirely from the Company’s
available cashflow or working capital facilities, which will be funded legally available for the purpose in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the company concerned and the laws of Bermuda.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 23rd April, 2002 (the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this document), the issued share capital of the
Company comprised 772,181,783 fully paid up shares of HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”).

Exercise in full the Repurchase Mandate, on the basis that no further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the date of the
2002 Annual General Meeting, could accordingly result in up to 77,218,178 Shares being repurchased by the Company during
the course of the period prior to the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or the expiration of the
period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required to be held by law or when revoked or varied
by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting, whichever occurs first.

REASONS FOR REPURCHASES

Although the Directors have no present intention of repurchasing any Shares, they believe that the flexibility afforded by the
Repurchase Mandate would be beneficial to the Company and its shareholders. At any time in the future when Shares are
trading at a discount to their underlying value, the ability of the Company to repurchase Shares will be beneficial to those
shareholders who retain their investment in the Company since their percentage interest in the assets of the Company would
increase in proportion to the number of Shares repurchased by the Company and thereby resulting in an increase in net assets
and/or earnings per share of the Company. Such repurchases will only be made when the Directors believe that such repurchases
will benefit the Company and its shareholders.




FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

In repurchasing Shares, the Company may only apply funds entirely from the Company’s available cashflow or working
capital facilities, which will be funded legally available for such purpose in accordance with the Memorandum of Association
and the Bye-laws of the Company and the laws of Bermuda. The laws of Bermuda provide that the amount of capital repaid in
connection with a share repurchase may only be paid out of either the capital paid up on the relevant shares, or the funds of the
Company that would otherwise be available for distribution by way of dividend or the proceeds of a new issue of shares made
for such purpose. The amount of premium payable on redemption may only be paid out of either the funds that would
otherwise be available for distribution by way of dividend or out of the share premium or contributed surplus accounts of the
Company before the Shares are repurchased. The Directors propose that repurchases of Shares under the Repurchase Mandate
in these circumstances would be financed from the Company’s available cashflow or working capital facilities which will be
funded legally available for such purpose.

There might be material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the Company (as compared with the
position disclosed in the audited accounts contained in the annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2001) in the event
that the Repurchase Mandate was to be carried out in full at any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the
Directors do not propose to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material
adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors
are from time to time appropriate for the Company. The number of Shares to be repurchased on any occasion and the price and
other terms upon which the same are purchased will be decided by the Directors at the relevant time having regard to the
circumstances then pertaining.

MARKET PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the Stock Exchange during each of the previous 12
months before 23rd April, 2002 (the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this document) were as follows:

Traded Market Price .

Highest Lowest
HK$ HK$

2001 )
April 0.520 0.350
May 0.720 0.500
June 0.710 0.490
July 0.470 0.340
August 0.370 0.300
September 0.305 0.225
October 0.340 0.250
November 0.350 0.310
December 0.315 0.290
2002
January 0.315 0.270
February 0.360 0.240
March 0.490 0.300
GENERAL

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the powers of the Company to make purchases under the
Repurchase Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules and the laws of Bermuda.

If as a result of a repurchase of Shares a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company increases,
such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (“Takeovers
Code”). As a result, a shareholder, or a group of shareholders acting in concert depending on the level of increase of
shareholder’s interest, could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to make a mandatory offer in
accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. The Directors are not aware of any shareholder, or a group of shareholders
acting in concert, who may become obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code in
the event that the Directors exercise the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate.

As at 23rd April, 2002 (the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this document), China Nonferrous Metals Holdings
(Cook Islands) Limited (“CNMH”) has an attributable interest of approximately 53.87% in the issued share capital of the
Company. In the event that the Company exercises the Repurchase Mandate in full, the attributable interest of CNMH in the
Company will increase to approximately 59.86%, accordingly CNMH will not be required under the Takeovers Code to make
an offer for all the issued securities of the Company pursuant to such increase.

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable enquiries, any of their associates {as
defined in the Listing Rules) presently intend to sell Shares in the event that the Repurchase Mandate is approved by
shareholders.

The Company has not been notified by any connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company that they have
a present intention to sell any Shares to the Company, or that they have undertaken not to sell any Shares held by them to the
Company in the event that the Repurchase Mandate is approved by its shareholders.

SECURITIES REPURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

No purchase of securities has been made by the Company during the last six months (whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise).

By Order of the Board
Wang Xingdong
Managing Director
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A Brighter Future Ahead

BHEBLREHR (#) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2001

[Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—BE—F —EEZTHF
2001 2000
Bt zE Fr . T
Notes {$°000) [$°000)
ReRRSEZEHERED Decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (180,165) (196,251)
IEEREBEHEE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (1,397) 862
BEeRRESEEHEE Cash and cash equivalents
F4 Beginning of year 317,213 512,602
F# End of year 27(e) 135,651 317,213

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 4/ R A E G £ @ ER 2 T
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B 7% #% ¢ B 3 Notes to the Financial Statements

—EE-E+_FA=+—8 31 December 2001

RS EHPEI  LUAEEBEN) {Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)
1. EERER 1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

RABEERBEERARIARAIRERE
FMAY - ARBIDIREERQF - R0 FE
WELRETEREREAFERRMBERER

ONFEM Holdings Limited ({the "Company”] was incorporated in Bermuda.
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
and other particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set cut in Note 13

HigE13 ¢ to the financial statements.
2. EEETHE 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) i B (a) Basis of presentation
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The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”] are prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation and valuation of investment properties
and certain investments in securities, and in accordance with
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice {"SSAPs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (the "HKSA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the
following SSAPs issued by the HKSA:

SSAP 9 {revised)
Events after the balance sheet date
SSAP 14 {revised)
Leases
SSAP 26
Segment reporting
SSAP 28
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
SSAP 29
Intangible assets
SSAP 30
Business combinations
SSAP 31
Impairment of assets
SSAP 32
Consolidated financial statements and accounting

for investments in subsidiaries
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A Brighter Future Ahead

B 7 B8 ¢ BY # Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
{cont'd}

As a result of the first time adoption of these accounting standards,
the Group has followed the transitional arrangements and, where
appropriate, retrospectively adjusted its financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2000, as required under SSAP 2 “Net
profit or loss for the period, fundamental errors and changes in
accounting policies”.
Note 33.

Details of these adjustments are disclosed in

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
accounts of the Company and the enterprises that it controls. This
control is normally evidenced when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as
to benefit from its activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are consolidated from or to their
effective dates of acquisition or disposal. The equity and net income
attributable to minority investors” interests are shown separately in

the Group’s balance sheet and income statement, respectively.

Intragroup balances and transactions and resulting unrealised
profits are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses resulting from
intragroup transactions are eliminated unless cost cannot be
recovered. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The
results of the subsidiaries are included in the income statement to
the extent of dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the net identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
as at the date of the acquisition is recorded as goodwill and
recognised as an asset in the balance sheet. Goodwill is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over its

expected useful life.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 49 R A B ERER A 7
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contq
Goodwill {cont'd)

Positive goodwill on acquisitions that occurred priar to | January
2001 was written off against contributed surplus. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph
88 of SSAP 30 such that goodwill previously written off against
contributed surplus has not been restated. However, any
impairment arising on such goodwill is accounted for in accordance
with SSAP 31.

SSAP 30, where an impairment loss has arisen since the date of

In accordance with the transitional provisions of

acquisition on goodwill previously written off against contributed
surplus, and previously there was not a policy to recognise such
impairment loss, this change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively and the impairment [oss should be recognised as
a prior year adjustment to beginning retained earnings in
accordance with SSAP 2. The comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2000 have been restated to conform to the
changed policy. As detailed in Note 26(a} and Note 33, the
Deginning retained earnings as at 1 January 2000 and 2001 have
been reduced by approximately $170,485,000 which is the amount
of the adjustment in respect of impairment losses relating to periods
prior to 2000.

Turnover
Turnover mainly represents the following:
(i) Revenue earned from construction contracts;

(ii) Gross invoiced sales, net of discounts and returns;

(iii) Rental and management fee income from investment

properties;
(iv) Dividend income from listed investments; and
(v} Gross proceeds from sale of properties.
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A Brighter Future Ahead

B 7 78 % BY 7 Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contq)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
a transaction will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, turnover and other revenues

are recognised on the following bases:
(i) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured Dy reference to the percentage of contract costs
incurred to date to total estimated contract costs for the
contract. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated refiably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are probably

recoverable.
fir) Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred

to customers.
firif Rental and management fee income from investment
properties

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the respective lease periods. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Management

fee income is recognised as services are rendered.
{iv} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

v/ Sale of properties

Income arising from sale of completed properties is
recognised upon completion of the sale when title passes

to the purchaser.
{vif interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis

that takes into account the effective yield on the assets.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5] REE G KB AR 2 3
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contq

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment properties,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul
costs, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be cbtained from the
use of an asset beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of the asset.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at annual rates
estimated to write off the cost of each asset over its expected
useful life. Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the remaining period of the respective leases.
The annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the remaining period of

the leases
Buildings 2% - 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining period of

the ieases
Plant and machinery 5% - 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10% - 25%

Motor vehicles 20% - 30%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected

useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

The useful lives of assets and depreciation method are reviewed
periodically.

When assets are sold or retired, their costs, accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is

included in the income statement.




(h)

FEESHEE @
R

REMERBEETERBEERA -
TEEEREENMERHEZ 0
RBF

REVREREBYHEMSFEEZR
RHEARR -

REMEZIRESHEEETARRE
BIRAMEEGRE - REAST
HEREDEBERB LA GEE
B BRIFEZBELREREEGESE
TRUBRHER ZFRERT B8
BREDEEREBERIEBEES YR
HERNR - HEBERERRERTOR
MEEEASG&E  BIZARBRER
ERCHMBRZSESTANESR -

LEREVMER  EREAZEER
HogstAKER ERHEFHUR
EWMEZEHOERE -

HHRE

EEES
REDEEREHRDRELEEE
GEZRBMEBERLSEZESFHIIE
EEES URLFEFTAEBEER
R -BEERBHFZOTVELRZEME
B AREERTERIRER -
PEREESRBESZEMARSE
AMER -

2.
{h}

A Brighter Future Ahead

S % 3% ¢ Y #F Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contq

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect
of which construction work and development have been completed
and which are held for their long-term investment potential.

Investment properties are stated at open market value determined

annually by independent valuers.

Increases in the carrying amount of investment properties are
credited to the investment property revaluation reserve in
shareholders’ equity. Decreases are firstly offset against increases
on earlier valuations in the investment property revaluation reserve,
unless the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover the deficit on
a portfolio basis, in which case the amount by which the deficit
exceeds the total amount in the investment property revaluation
reserve should be charged to the income statement. Where a
deficit has previously been charged to the income statement and
a revaluation surplus subseqguently arises, this surplus is credited
to the income statement to the extent of the deficit previously

charged.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the realised portion
of the revaluation reserve is credited to the income statement as
part of the profit or loss on disposal of the investment property.

Investments in securities
Trading securities

Securities that are acquired and held for the purpose of generating
a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer's margin are
designated as trading securities and are included in the balance
sheet at their fair values. Any changes in the fair values of trading

securities are recognised in the income statement when they arise.

Upon disposal of the trading securities, any profit or (0ss is

accounted for in the income statement.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED S3 RAABGETER AT
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contq

Investments in securities (cont'd)
Non-trading securities

Securities other than trading securities are stated in the balance
sheet at fair value. Any change in the fair value is recognised
directly in the investment revaluation reserve until the securities
are sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of, or until the securities
are determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain

or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Transfers from the investment revaluation reserve (o the income
statement as a result of impairment are reversed when
circumstances and events that led to the write-downs or write-offs
cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new

circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future.

Upon disposal of the non-trading securities, any profit or 1oss,
including any amount previously held in the revaluation reserve in
respect of those investments, is accounted for in the income

staternent.
Inventories
Manufacturing and trading

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
Costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the

period in which the reversal occurs.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contq

Inventories (cont'd)
Properties under development, properties or land held for sale

Properties under development represents interests in land and
buildings under construction. Properties under development and
properties or land held for sale are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises original land acquisition costs,
costs of land use rights, construction expenditures incurred and
other direct development costs attributable to such properties,
including interest and other expenses relating to sales of the
properties. Net realisable value is estimated by the directors based
on prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis, less
any further costs expected to be incurred on disposal.

Construction contracts

The accounting policy for contract revenue recognition is set out
in Note {f){i}. When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as expenses by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the
balance sheet date. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected total loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. When the outcome of &
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the balance sheet date are
recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are
presented in the balance sheet as “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or "Gross amounts due
to customers for contract work” (as a liability}, as applicable.
Amaounts received before the related work is performed are included
in the balance sheet, as a liability, as "Advances received”. Amounts
billed, but not yet paid by customers, for work performed on a
contact are included in the balance sheet under “Trade and other
receivables”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash represents cash on hand and deposits with banks or other
financial institutions which are repayable on demand.

Cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash with
original maturities of three months or less that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, less overdrafts and advances
from banks repayable within three months from the date of the
advances.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 RA B KR ERAH
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when, and only when an enterprise has
a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of a past
event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a refiable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of
a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method in respect
of timing differences between profit as computed for taxation
purposes and profit as stated in the financial statements to the
extent that it is prabable that a liability or an asset will crystallise.

Leased assets
fi} Finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incident tc ownership of an asset. Title

may or may not eventually be transferred.

The Group recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities
in the balance sheet at amounts equal at the inception of
the leases to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. In
calculating the present value of the minimum lease
payments the discount factor used is the interest rate implicit
in the lease, when it can be determined. Otherwise, the
Group's incremental borrowing rate is used. Initial direct
costs incurred are included as part of the asset. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to periods during the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

A finance lease gives rise to depreciation expense for the
asset as well as a finance cost for each accounting period.
The depreciation policy for leased assets is the same as that
for depreciable assets that are owned.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta)

Leased assets (cont'd)
il Operating leases

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Leases of assets under which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessors are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an
operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

The Group presents assets subject to operating leases in
the balance sheet according to the nature aof the asset.
Lease income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs
incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating
lease are recognised as an expense in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment, investments in subsidiaries and
goodwill are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in income for items of property, plant and equipment,
investments in subsidiaries and goodwill. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. The
net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of the
asset in an arm'’s length transaction while value in use is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the
end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for
individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating

unit.

A reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded
when the impairment losses recognised for the asset no longer
exist or have decreased. The reversal is recorded in income or as

a revaluation increase.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Foreign currencies

Companies within the Group maintain their books and records
either in Hong Kong doallars or Renminbi (the “functional
currencies”’}. In the financial statements of the individual companies,
transactions in other currencies are translated into the respective
functional currencies at exchange rates prevailing at the time of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies are translated into the respective functional
currencies at rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date. All exchange differences are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.

Financial statements of foreign consolidated subsidiaries are
translated at year-end exchange rates with respect to the balance
sheet, and at an average rate for the year with respect to the
income statement. Share capital and other reserves are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at historical rates. All resulting translation

differences are included in the cumulative translation reserve.
Staff retirement benefits

The Group provides defined contribution plans (including the
Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF"}) to its employees in Hong Kong
based on local laws and regulations. The plans cover full-time
employees and provide for contributions ranging from 5% to 10%
of the salaries. For MPF, contributions of each of the Hong Kong
subsidiaries and their employees are subject to a maximum amount
of $1,000 per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary
and are not subject to any limitation. The Group's contributions to
defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement
in the year to which they relate and are reduced, where
appropriate, by contributions forfeited for those employees who
leave the scheme before such contributions become vested.

Pursuant to the People's Republic of China {"PRC"} laws and
regulations, contributions to the basic old age insurance for the
Group’s local staff are made monthly to an independently managed
retirement plan sponsored by the government based on a fixed
percentage of the standard salary set by the provincial government,
of which a portion is borne by the Group and the remainder is
borne by the staff. The independent agency is responsible for the
pension habilities relating to such staff on their retirement. The

Group accounts for these contributions on an accrual basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other costs incurred
in connection with the borrowing of funds, iNncluding amortisation
of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, amortisation of
ancillary casts incurred in connection with arranging borrowings
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest

COsts.

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except when they are
directly attributable to construction contracts and properties under
development that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
prepare for its intended use or sale in which case they are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs
are being incurred and the activities to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Borrowing costs are capitalised
at the weighted average cost of the related borrowings until the
asset is ready for its intended use. If the resulting carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment oss is

recorded.
Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements.
They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embaodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements
but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject

to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

n accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contq)

Segment reporting (cont'd)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, segment expenses and segment performance include
transfers between segments. Such inter-segment pricing is based
on similar terms as those available to unaffiliated customers for

similar services. Those transfers are eliminated upon consolidation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets [both tangible and intangible)
that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,
interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and financing
expenses and minority interests.

Events after the balance sheet date

Post-year-end events that provide additional information about a
company's position at the balance sheet date or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate (adjusting events),
are reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's business and
geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen as the
primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the Group's

internal financial reporting.
(a) Business segments

The Group's operations comprise the following main business

segments:

Construction contracts: Design and installation of curtain
walls and aluminium windows, as
well as construction work related to
electrical and mechanical
engineering and contracting

businesses.

Manufacturing and trading: Manufacturing and trading of oil and
chemical products, doors and fire

proof materials.

Property leasing: Leasing of premises to generate
rental income and to gain from the
appreciation in the properties’ values
in the fong term.

Property development: Development of residential and
commercial properties in the PRC.

Securities investment and Trading and investment of securities.
trading:

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 6] R A E XD ER 2 T
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3. ZEES® 3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta|
(a) ¥ oE (F) (a) Business segments (cont'd)
rELH HERES BERARAN
Construction Manufacturing and NEES NERR Securities investment 28
contracts trading Property leasing Property development and trading Total
Z¥%-% -TTTE -28-F _TTEE -8%-F —ETEF CRP-£ -TFREF ZRQ-F -“TTTE Z(Q-F -“TEFRE
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
f% fx f&  Fz f&  Fx fAR FR xR Fr&  Fi  FR
i {$°000) {$000) {§°000) 1$°000] {§°000) {$000) {§°000] 1$°000) {§°000) {5°000) {$°000) 15000}
9N
REVENUE
HREFHE
Sales to external
customers 252,014 395315 50,598 62,604 12,083 11,993 - — 885 729 315,580 470,641
28
RESULTS
Segment results [160,916} 9,135)  {6,573) (3,032} [41,945) 34,017 [126}) [2,233) {138,367} {168 (347,927) 19,449
AABLE BT
WAEE
Unallocated corparate
{expenses) income, net {26,145) 3,361
£g (B8 EN
Operating {lcss) profit {374,072 22,810
BEAR
Finance costs (8,731  [14,505)
fERAR
Income tax expense 113,944 12,391]
LHBERER
Minority interests 23,013 5611
REEG (BR)EAER
Net lloss| prefit attributable
10 sharenoiders (373,734 1,525
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3. ZEEHm 3. SEGMENT INFORMATION icontq)
(a) XBoE(E (a) Business segments (cont'd)
BESH HERER EBRERAEE
Construction Manufacturing and NERE NERE Securities investment 28
contracts trading Property leasing  Property development and trading Total
Z88-% “EETE ZB%-f -ZTRY¥ Z8B-F -"TTTF -¥¥-f _TTTEF “¥F-% -"TTRE -BE-F -TTITE
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

Fr 7 Fx Fr i Fr Fr 7 Fr FI Fx FT
(000} (5000)  ($'000) (000}  (§°000)  (S000)  {$°000)  [S000]  {$°000) (5000}  ($000)  [$'00Q)

ReEs

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets 208,415 373,370 50,407 51,201 243,462 281311 237,867 199,519 69,093 189,179 809,244 1,094,580
AiE2b24E

Unaliocated corporate

2SELS - — - — - — - - -

377,412 502,166

2EE
Tatal assets 1,186,656 1,596,746

288E

Segment fiabilities 165,357 189,748 10,961 12,435 4,057 4,726 66,080 56,737 8 9 246,463 263,655
FABZLEER

Unallocated corporate

liabilities - - - - - - - - - 268,058 281,691

28
Total liabilities 514,521 545,346

AEEELZEARY
Capital expenditures
incurred during

the year 2,579 4,246 2,241 5,188 - - 4 475 - —
ik
Depreciation 3,161 3,301 2,054 2,092 — — 145 97 1 —
ERENER

BRZHEBE

Impairment loss

recognised in income

statement 6,327 2,043 6,209 4,568 - - - - - -
EFERBTED

RERR
Impairment foss

recagnised directly

charged to equity - — - - - — - — - 18,693
RENMZERE

Bx (k)
Non-cash expenses

{income| other than

depreciation 58,745 4,568 6,209 497} 37,523 132,276) - - 139,034 822
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3. ZEER@® 3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (contd
(b} HEDE L) Geographical segments
FEEEERBEENEEER  Ex The Group's business is managed on a worldwide basis, but it
BB ERY - —FEFF participates in four principal economic environments. Hong Kong
ERERDEDNSAEETERZEE and the PRC are the major markets for all the Group’s businesses,
w5 ZE—PENESWAREH except that a small portion of its trading income is derived from
FREMEBEEIER Japan and other Southeast Asian countries in 2000.
NEREHWESBZ2ERS  DHEK In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
ADBREFPZHESE - DBREER segment revenue is based on the geographical locations of the
BEEARMETDUNEEZHENERE customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on
#E o the geographical location of the assets.
AARENRAEESR
Japan and other
EERAMN G B Southeast Asian
Hong Kong and Macau The PRC Australia countries Total
“88-F _TTTF “88-F “$5%5F -8%-F% -TTEF -“BE-£ “TTTF -8PY-F -TE%F
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
r T Fr Fr ¥ Fr Fr Fr Fr T
($°000)  [s000)  {$°000)  (s'000)  {$°000}  [S°000)  [$°000)  (S000)  {$°000) {5000
HIMNEE
External sales 142,401 208,127 173,179 261599 - - - 915 315580 470,641
Segment assets 432,227 630,752 370,031 456,842 6,986 6,986 - — 809,244 1,094,580
BEXRMAX
Capital expenditure 6,009 3,539 2,977 7,068 - — - — 8,986 10,607

B oMM E L WREFRBF LA BER
THE - BEtRE FvBEEEZAEFERE
HD AT -
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There is no major disparity in the ratios between turnover and
profit in relation to the above geographical locations. Hence no
analysis is presented for the profit contributions from the above
geographical locations.
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4, EA 4. OTHER REVENUES
—EE-F CZETEF
2001 2000
Fr Fr
{$'000) -{$°000)
REFEERLFZ Interest income from intermediate
FEUWA holding company 2,451 2,936
B A Interest income from
RERITHER Bank deposits 14,809 28,352
R E H B Wik =X Sundry debtors 1,166 3,534
SERBURE R R Interest income from a third party
AEBZE=ZR relating to a court judgement in
B WA favour of the Group 6,083 —
ERW#HFRE Exchange gains, net 594 1,123
BEERSEHZARER Unrealised gain on revaluation of
g #= trading securities — 24
Hi Others 1,778 4,340
26,881 40,309
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5. MIBERE 5. FINANCE COSTS
B8 C—ZEZEF
2001 2000
5 Fr
($'000) ($°000)
RITERRERX Bank loans and overdrafts
BEREFANZEEER Wholly repayable within five years 14,016 19,400
BAFTEFREZHER Not wholly repayable within five years 344 223
BEEY Finance leases 31 63
14,391 19,686
HBARESHOR Less: Borrowing costs capitalised under
BRFYMEZ construction contracts and
BERERER properties under development (a) (5,660) (5,181)
8,731 14,505

(a) BESHNREETMEZEEHEE (a) Borrowing costs were capitalised at rates ranging from 5.17% to
RSN7%E6INF B (ZEEEE - 9.61% (2000: 8.50% to 26.50%) per annum under construction
8.50%ZE 26.50%) BIRE X contracts and properties under development.
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6. BRTA(EE)EFR 6. ([LOSS] PROFIT BEFORE TAX
MRAAT (BB BF MR B A - (Loss) Profit before tax is determined after charging (crediting) the following:

—gB-% -FFEE

2001 2000
Fr T
{$°000) ($°000)
REMEZHER Gross rental and management fee income
THBRUA from investment properties {12,083) (11,993
BoBX Less: Qutgoings 1,823 1,749
(10,260) (10,244)
EHFERSE Cost of inventories sold 28,386 31,603
BIXS(TEEESEHE Staff costs [excluding directors” emoluments,
R AR see Note 11] 66,350 76,695
BOBRREPYEZ Less: Amount capitalised in properties
T3 under development (296) (200)
66,054 76,495
BERFHEHRBBREREZ Pension scheme contributions, net of
FIE 2 R forfeited contributions 1,923 1,339
BRUTEE ZEEHNER Operating leases in respect of
THREF Land and buildings 3,806 7.039
S = Plant and machinery 227 99
4,027 7,138
WO TBRRIME Less: Amount capitalised in properties
o under development (221} (416)
3,806 6,722
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6. BREEI(FE)EN @ 6. [LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX (contd)

ZEE-F ZETEF
2001 2000
Fr Fr
{$'000) {$°000]
RO E Auditors’ remuneration 3,067 2.450
HEVE HMERRBZEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 100 152
¥ BERREBRESRE Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 7,543 3,069
weE Depreciation on
CREEE Owned assets 6,477 7,040
HEEE Leased assets 103 208
6,580 7,248
BBRBEREPYE Less: Amount capitalised in properties
2EE under development [145) [167)
6,435 7,081
REFEEE Provision for inventory obsolescence 5,236 347
BELELHAERE (Write-back of] Provision for net realisable
FEERE EE) value of land held for sale (409} 1,000
FEHERETER Provision for net realisable value of
FEEE machinery held for sale 3,714 —
REREBE Provision for bad and doubtful debts
(FTEEEMEBWERD (excluding a sundry debtor) 47,744 5,205
BRENIBEREFR Provision for gross amounts due from
RIEABERE customers for contract work 11,935 —
RREEERBEBA Impairment in value of non-trading securities
WHk2HESE transferrred from investment revaluation
BHEZRE reserve 10 income statement 18,693 —
BEREERSELEL Unrealised (gain] loss on revaluation of
RBH (WK BB trading securities (1,011} 822
B (RMaE21(c) Provisions (see Note 21(c)) 7,236 —
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BEEEEBRIRITHERE -

A Brighter Fulure Ahead
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7. [INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had
no assessable profit for the year (2000: Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided at the rate of 16% on the estimated assessable profit derived
from Hong Kong). Overseas taxation has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates prevailing in the respective

Jurisdictions.

—SB-F5 "EEEE

2001 2000
T T
{$'000) ($°000)

ERREHR Hong Kong profits tax
8 Provision — 730
UEIEERETE Under-provision in prior years 544 488
BINEIIE Overseas taxation 13,400 1,173
13,944 2,391

8. MREREWL (SR =N

BEREMRRS (BB AFNBE—223 AKX
REIFEMR TR AR B EHL387,924,000JT 2 55
B(ZEZEETF 1 119,899,0007T) °

9. KE

BEEe TEIRBERE_ET-%1+_A8
T—BLEEFREZBRE -

I

10. 8K (BB &R

REANGRER (BB AN DEEBRRE
EiEE A B EH373.734.000t (T E
& HFE11,525,0000T) REAFEEANDET
D ZMETFHRET772,181, 783 (8%
TE 772,181,783 Mt & ©

HRA—FE-—FUEBE2BERD &I
B LERES (BB BF&EF -

8. (LOSS) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

Consolidated {loss) profit attributable to shareholders includes a loss of
approximately $387,924,000 {2000: $119,899,000} which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

9. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2001.

10. (LOSSES) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (losses) earnings per share has been calculated based on the
consolidated loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of
approximately $373,734,000 (2000: profit of approximately $11,525,000)
and the weighted average number of 772,181,783 shares {2000:
772,181,783 shares) in issue during the year.

No disclosure of the diluted (losses} earnings per share has been made as

there were no potential dilutive shares in 2001.
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11. EERERITHRAESE 11,
il
(a) HESH

BELREFNEI61(IHER ETRA

EMOLUMENTS

{a) Directors’ emoluments

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

Directors’ emaluments disclosed in accordance with Section 161({1}

BEBEE2EEZBSMT of the Companies Ordinance and the provisions of the listing rules
are as follows:

—RBE-F —EBEZEE
2001 2000
F Fr
{$'000) ($°000)

BIKHTES Independent non-executive directors
biokc Fees 510 510

HITESE Executive directors

weE Fees — —
FeRER Salaries and allowances 4,056 3,892
AL Bonus 351 324
BARESIEMHR Pension scheme contributions — 178
4,917 4,904

FAMBLERETEAF -

EEHeRBES ABLRBeRESN

No director waived any emoluments during the year.

An analysis of the emotuments of the directors by number of

mr directors and emoluments range is as follows:
—B8-F CZEEREEF
2001 2000
F — 1,000,000 Nil to $1,000,000 3 3
1,000,0017Tt — 1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 -— —
1,500,001t — 2,000,0007¢C $1,500,001 - $2,000,000 1 —
2,000,001 7T — 2,500,0007T $2,000,001 - $2,500,000 1 2
5 5
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1. EERERITHAES 11. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

B ) EMOLUMENTS (conrd)

(b) AEEEMEAL {B) Five highest-paid individuals
FNFEEBTEARTESESMEAL During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
(BHESE) e  ERMAKRE five highest-paid individuals (including directors) as an inducement
B sm o mE - to join or as compensation for loss of office.
AEBEMEATEERE (ZEER The five highest-paid individuals included two [2000: two) executive
THE WA ) BeRLtiiarBEES directors whose emoluments are disclosed in (a) above. Details of
BITESE - Ht =R (ZETEF : ‘ the emoluments of the other three {2000: three} individuals are as
ZTEIATZHMESEBERT follows:

BB -F ZEEEF

2001 2000

Fr T

{$'000) {$°000)

HeRZH Salaries and allowances 5,563 5,633
BRET MR Pension scheme contributions 391 351
5,954 5,984
BEf=%(ZFTT  =ZH) B The range of the emoluments of the other three (2000: three)

AT Z2BI&EEMT ¢ highest-paid individuals is as follows:

—EBE-F CZTITEF

2001 2000

1,000,001t — 1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 — —

1.500,0017t — 2,000,0007T $1.500,001 - $2,000,000 2 2

2,000,001 — 2,500,0007T $2,000,001 - $2,500,000 — —

2,500,0017T — 3,000,000 $2.500,001 - $3,000,000 1 1

3 3
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12. Y2~ BERRE 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
{a) REWE BERRERFAZED {a} Movements (consclidated) in property, plant and equipment during
RN the year are as follows:
ZEE-% ZB2ER
2001 2000
e - #0
k= RRA
NEEHB Furniture,
BEYE IHRBF leasehold BEREE fixtures RE
Investment Land and  improve-  Plant and and Motor 43t L
properties  buildings ments machinery equipment vehicles Total Total
Fr Ir i 7 Tn Fr R Fr
{$000)  ($'000)  ($°000)  {$'000]  ($'000)  (§'000)  ($°000) ($:000]
REREE Cost or valuation
£4 Beginning of year 269,800 36,711 10,911 18,469 17,351 7,670 360,912 326,823
ERERFHEE Transfer to machinery held
BE for sale - - - {4,713) - - {4,713) —
nE Additions - 3,900 495 1,926 1,746 919 8,986 10,607
B (HE) EE Revaluation (deficit) gain {36,500} - — - - — {36,500 31,300
HEBER Write-down for impairment
R loss — - - - - - - 13,874)
HE Disposals
—BBNE — through disposal
WEARE of subsidiaries - - - - - - - {120}
— &4 — others - - (336) (6] 1970) (792) (2,104} [3.833)
EARE Exchange adjustments - - - — (8} {2 {10} i
F5 End of year 233,300 40,611 11,070 15,676 18,119 7,795 326,571 360,912
RARGEZ Analysis of cost or valuation
AFAT is as follows:
REE Al cost - 40,611 11,070 15,676 18,119 7,795 93,271 91,112
REXMEE Al professional valuation
—ZEE-F — 2001 233,300 - — - - -~ 233,300 269,800
233,300 40,611 11,070 15,676 18,119 7,795 326,571 360,912
RAFER Accumulated depreciation and
HERE impairment loss
£3 Beginning of year - 2,274 5,918 9,888 11,677 5,866 35,623 31,058
REBR Write-down {Reversalj for
e (28) impairment loss - 5,056 985 - 1,392 110 7,543 1805}
FEERH Charge for the year - 877 1,309 1,362 1,981 1,051 6,580 7,248
HE - e Disposals — others - - 336) (6) (784) (669)  {1,755) {1878
EiAE Exchange adjustments - — - - 2] - i2) -
T End of year - 8,207 7,876 11,244 14,304 6,358 47,989 35,623
REFE Net book value
E& End of year 233,300 32,404 3,194 4,432 3,815 1,437 278,582 325,289
£4 Beginning of year 269,800 34,437 4,993 8,581 5,674 1,804 325,289 295,765
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(5} LB EENEE EEEERESE (D)
) B 240,000 (Z B EEF
226,0007T) °

() REDEZE THREIZEEESF (O

A Brighter Future Ahead

B # 5% ¢ B 5F Notes to the Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contd

The net book value of fixed assets held under finance leases
amounted to approximately $240,000 (2000: $226,000).

The carrying amounts of investment properties and land and

mr buildings are analysed as follows:
REWH THREF
Investment properties Land and buildings
ZEBEE-F CZETERF ZBF-F CZEBEEF
2001 2000 2001 2000
Tt T TR Tt
{$'000) {$'000) {$°000) ($°000)
TURER In Hong Kong
— REBMEY — Long-term leases
(50 £) {over 50 years) 229,300 265,800 12,925 12,550
— PEESN — Medium-term leases
(10-50%F) (10-50 years) — — 9,791 7,973
LR PE In the PRC
— REEY — Long-term leases
(50F L L) (over 50 years) 4,000 4,000 619 9,910
— RERELY — Medium-term leases
(10-50%) [10-50 years] — — 7,565 2,384
UREBRFE Outside Hong Kong and
BLohits & the PRC
— KAXE — Freenold — — 1,504 1,620
233,300 269,800 32,404 34,437

(d) REWE T REBEFHBILESZE (d)
Dudley Surveyors Limitedid Z EF —
E+ - R=+—BERABTEETE
ff - FAEHREHL 36,500,0007T
(ZZZET5 : : BH31,300,0007T)
BitAMEE -

(e) SRERES £49237,092,000T (=8 {e)
TEF  273,773,00070) 2 EWE
RTipEEFIEIRE  (EAAKE
RITEEZER(RMWE28)

The investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2001
by an independent firm of surveyors, Dudley Surveyors Limited,
on an open market value basis. During the year, revaluation deficit
of approximately $36,500,000 {2000: surplus of $31,300,000)
has been charged to the income statement.

Investment properties and land and buildings of total net book
value of approximately $237,092,000 (2000: $273,773,000] are
mortgaged as collateral for the Group's banking facilities {see Note
28).
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13. RMEH AT Z2RE 13, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
b NN
The Company
—gR-% =-8TEF
2001 2000
Fr Fr
{$'000) [$°000)
FLETIRD—FREE Unlisted shares, at cost 695,296 695,296
"o ORERE Less: Provision for impairment in value [695,296) (495,296
— 200,000
ERTFHERF (g Loans to subsidiaries (a) 99,861 94,184
BoMWBLAIZEREE Less: Provision for loans to subsidiaries (87,947) (69,891)
11,914 24,293
FEU M B LD RE (D) Amounts due from subsidiaries {b) 847,537 756,732
BEWKMEBLATZ Less: Provision for amounts due from
RIREE subsidiaries 438,082 {373,160
409,455 383,572
421,369 607,865

2 BTWBATZERASEENR EBBD (3
LERFRHENE - FATRER
BRHBATER I BRSFEEE

(bl EYHBRSFAASERERE . |
ARERBHERNBAREE S

REFEEBRER -

) BERAWBLAR-RT-—E+= [
A=+—EzAEELTLREER

1B o

S0.

Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and bear interest at commercial
lending rates. The Company has agreed not to demand repayment
from those subsidiaries until they are financially capable of doing

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and non-interest

bearing. The Company has agreed not to demand repayment

from those subsidiaries until they are financially capable of doing

S0.

2001.

HAEEEGEDER AT /74 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying values of the
subsidiaries are not less than their carrying values at 31 December



T3.

REBADZERE @

(d) LTARATIRZ-_ZEE—F+=A= (d)

13.

A Brighter Future Ahead
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

T—BIZEZEMBARIZAE 2001:
REESE
Percentage of equity
ERTRERR ARE EfM Bl
ERRY/ BEREEE: ZEH LN E27
EEw Particulars BRE BE %8
Place of of issued or Group’s Directly Indirectly
DEEH incorporation/ registered and effective  held by the held by the TEEH
Name of company operations paid up capital * holding Company Company  Principal activities
FERREAT &R 500,0008 100 — 00 REEERE
Brena Company Limited ~ Hong Kong SREFER Provision of
500,000 shares of management
$1 each services
RABEES TE 2,000,000% 7T 52 — 52 BRERRBER
IERRAT The PRC U$$2,000,000 ZRE
Condo Construction Installation of
Engineering Co., Lta** aluminium window
cases and curtain walls
BHIRERDA EE/RERPE 7500008 52 - 52 REERREEZ
Condo Curtain Wall Hong Kong/Macau  BEEEIER R RER
Company Limited and the PRC 750,000 shares of Design and installation of
§1 each curtain walls and
aluminium window
cases
EALIR(RE) R 600,0008 52 — 52 REZR 28R
ARQA Hong Kong BREEIER KBEBREZZE
Condo Engineering 500,000 shares of Investment halding and
[China) Limited $1 each installation of aluminium
window cases and
curtain walls
REEBBHAMERAE 78 12,062,711 TARE 52 - 52 BEBARM
Dongguan Bridgman The PRC RMB 12,062,711 Manufacturing of fire

Fire Doors Limited

doors
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13. RIS A8 ZIRE @) 13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (contq)
BEESL
Percentage of equity
ERTEERR 558 ERH (k3
AT/ BRREHE ZER ELE) AL
S Particulars FRE BE B8
Place of of issued or Group’s Directly Indirectly
NEER incorporation/ registered and effective  held by the held by the TE&E
Name of company operations paid up capital * holding Company Company  Principal activities
RE(BEIRRLT L BRERERE AR 100 - 100 NERE
Eastrend {Hong Kong} Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Property investment
Limited
RETEERAT g3 l0REREE BT 52 - 52 BERZEGAMAR
Enful Engineering Hong Kong 500,000k BRERELR ER
Limited BREE AR Selling and installation
100 shares of $1 each of fire proofing
500,000 non-veting materials and
deferred shares of $1 each products
REEEARLA REEZEE/  10000REREEIZR 52 - 52 RELR
Enful Holdings Limited EERTE IBRERERELR Investment holding
British Virgin Islands/  SREBIER
Hong Kong and 10,000 shares of
the PRC USS 1 each
4 non-voling deferred
shares of US$ 1 each
Fantasia Venture Limted  RBAZHEE/TE RAEIER 100 - 100 REER
Fantasia Venture Limited  British Virgin Islands/ 1 share of USS| Investment holding
the PRC
EREERAT A JREREE AR 100 - 100 #ERE
Full Pacific Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
Geraldine Profits Limited  XBERES/EE RERIZR 100 - 00 RERR
Geraldine Profits Limited  British Virgin Islands/ | share of USS! Investment holding
Hong Kong
EHERLT & WERAEIER 100 - 100 #ERE
Goldchamp Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (contq)

REESY
Percentage of equity
ERTRERR rEE E&d 5§ 3
ERRT/ BRRTHE ZEB LS EQF
EXnE Particulars BRE 2] B8
Place of of issued or Group's Directly Indirectly
ARER incorporation/ registered and effective  held by the held by the TEXH%
Name of company operations paid up capital * holding Company Company  Principal activities
EHERAH £/ IREREEIER 100 - 00 NERE
Goldmass Limited Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BRERERLET B4/ PE IBEREEER 100 - 00 NERE
Great Way Properties Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of §1 each Property investment
Limited
ENTERE ) AR 500,000 100 - 100 BETELIES
EEMCIBRAT The PRC RMB 500,000 Manufacturing of oil and
Guangzhou Panyu City chemical products
Jia Jun Chemical
Company Limited
BREEERLT ABREIHE IREBIZR 100 — 100 REER
Jaeger Development British Virgin Islands 1 share of USS| Investment holding
Limited
BXRMILTIERLE EE IRSREEI00ER 100 — 00 FHREIER
Jaeger Qi & Chemical Hong Kong 20,0008 BERERELR RERER
Company Limited SREEI00B R Manufacturing and
10 shares of $100 each trading of oll and
20,000 non-voting chemical products
deferred shares of
$100 each
RRABLIEE ABEABS/  100R 100 — 100 RERR
ERDA FER= BREEIZR Investment holding
Jaeger Oif & Chemical British Virgin Isfands/ 100 shares of
Holdings Limited Hong Kong and US$1 each

the PRC
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13. R AR Z2R®RE @)

13. INVESTMENTS I[N SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

REEZL
Percentage of equity
ERTAEMK x%H EEA oF:::
HREY/ BRERAHE" ZER L ERE
EXHE Particulars BRE BE BE
Place of of issued or Group’s Directly Indirectly
LEER incorporation/ registered and effective  held by the held by the FEEHE
Name of company operations paid up capital * holding Company Company  Principal activities
Jaeger Trading EEEHE BER 100 — 00 REREREBRRY
[Overseas) Limited Island of Nevis HEIZEER Provision of agency and
Jaeger Trading 2 shares of IRE1 each consultancy services
[Overseas) Limited
EXEXARLT B 10008 100 - 00 BHEE
Karman Industries Hong Kong SHEEIER Securities trading
Limited 1,000 shares of $1
each
REERDA R/ 18 JREREEIER 100 - 00 MERE
King Circle Limited Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of S1 each Property investment
BRERLT B/ 7B JREREEET 100 - 100 NERE
King Fast Limited Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
SEREERAT gk 1,000 100 100 AREMEDAF
King Life Development Hong Kong EREEIEL RURERS
Limited 1,000 shares of Provision of financing
§1 each for other group
tompanies
ENERLE EE/78 REREEIER 100 - 100 BERE
Landcore Limited Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of §1 each Property investment
ERERLA Bk WREREEIER 100 - 00 YERE
Linkcheer Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Property investment
BRBRLT 8 /%E IMEBREEIER 100 - 100 MERE

Metro Champion Limited

Hong Kong/the PRC

2 shares of §1 each

BHEEREDER LT 78 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

Property investment




A Brighter Future Ahead

J % 78 75 BV #F Notes to the Financial Statements

13. RMBEQARZRE @ 13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (contd)
REEAH
Percentage of equity
ERTHEMR 158 =63 AR
Y/ REREFE ZBR N FRF
E¥ny Particulars BRE BE 5B
Place of of issued or Group’s Directly Indirectly
ARER incorporation/  registered and effective  held by the held by the TE£#
Name of company operations paid up capital * holding Company Company  Principal activities
ONFEM Finance Limied ~ RBELEE/E% 10008 100 100 — RHtEELIRE
ONFEM Finance Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/  SREEI1ZT RERKE
Hong Kong 1,000 shares of Provision of financing
USS1 each for ather group
companies
ONFEM Investments ABRIEE/EE 100K 100 100 — REER
Limited British Virgin Islands/  S8REB 0% Investment holding
ONFEM Investments Hong Kong 100 shares of
Limited US$10 each
Pedviking Pty Limited 2K BORSREEIAR 100 — 100 WMERE
Pedviking Pty Limited Australia 250 shares of AS1 Praperty development
each
SANBRIRAREE +E 5,000,000% 7L 5] — 51 BRREHMIERR
Polycrown Construction The PRC 1S55,000,000 Electrical and mechanical
Engineering Limited engineering works
ZHMIR(58) RERZEE/ 100K 51 — 51 REER
ERARF FE/ EREEIZR Investment holding
Polycrown Engineering British Virgin Islands/ 100 shares of
{Holdings) Limited Hong Keng/ US$T each
the PRC
SEAMIRERLE £ 1,000,000% 8 & 51 — 51 SHREAIRER
Palycrown Engineering Hong Kong HECOIEBT Electrical and mechanical
Limited 1LOD0.00ORERERELR engineering works
BREEIER

1,000,000 shares of $0.01 each

1,000,000 non-voting

deferred shares of §1 each
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13. RMSBATZRE® 13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conrq)
REEDE
Percentage of equity
BRTAZMR rEE -§:3:: Bk
ERAY/ BRRERE ZR#% ERF N
Egny Particulars FRE 2] kR
Piace of of issued or Group’s Directly Indirectly
NEER incorporation/ registered and effective  held by the heldbythe TEHE
Name of company operations paid up capital * holding Company Company  Principal activities
Polycrown International EEERANE 5008 51 - 51 ER TBEBREN
Engineering Limited Inc.  Republic of 500 shares Trading, marketing and
Palycrown International Panama design
Engineering Limited Inc.
BHERLA BED/HA IREEIXT 100 - 00 REER
Rich Reward Limited Samoa/Norway I share of USSI Investment holding
LE2RRNEHIR 98 2,040,000% 7t 47 - 47 BERBREREZZE
BRAR The PRC Us$2,040,000 Trading and installation of
Shanghai Jin Qiac Condo aluminium window
Decoration Engineering cases and curtain walls
o, g
BRERAE gk /dE BEREEER 100 - 100 Y%RE
Tacford Limited Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERLT g/ 78 IREREEIET 100 - 100 YERE
Tasko Limited Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of §1 each Property investment
REEEERAT i MEREEIRER 100 - 00 WREE
Tinnex Management Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property management
Limited
BREXERLA g /08 MEREEIER 100 - 100 BERE
Top Gain Properties Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
Limited
Virtyre Limited i BERTEI0ER 100 — 100 Y%RE
Virtyre Limired Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Property investment
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13. REBARZRE ® 13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (contd
. o ; - A
Percentage of equity
ERATHERER :3- 12 EEE F:3::
s/ BREAHEE &R ELE NG
EXity Particulars BRE BE BB
Place of of issued or Group’s Directly Indirectly
LAEB incorporation/ registered and effective  held by the held by the TE£%
Name of company operations paid up capital * holding Company Company  Principal activities
Wellstep Management AERZEE 30,0008 52 — 52 RAZR
Limited British Virgin Islandsy  8REEIETR Investment holding
Wellstep Management Hong Kong 30,000 shares of
Limited USST each
RAERAA /%@ IREREEIER 100 - 00 WERE
Weslink Limited Hong Kong/the PRC 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BRERAF g8 100B% 100 - 00 BHEH
Wiison Murray Far East — Hong Kong EREEI0BR Securities trading
Limited 100 shares of
$10 each
KERNEBRAER & AR #44,000,0007 80 — 80 NEBRE
BRAR The PRC RMBA44,000,000 Property development

Zhuhai (Oriental) Blue
Horrison Properties

Company Limited ***

* BREEEBN  FIBEZRONENSE * The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. None of the
EER - -BE_EE-F+_A=Z+— subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during the year ended
BEFEAEZAGR SWEBLESE 31 December 2001.

BITEFAEERE -
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REE AR Z2®E @

e BRNERKHIEFRLF ([HME EE

E)D-—HMRPBERIZEEEER
g BEHAMI0E  HEZEZLF
BIE - BESLELFHEZIER  BA
BEARGEINTHIFGREEESR
300,000 ARYE - REEEESZH
MEEEEEESREZMAEEN B
B RNEBBELEE IRNEEZERE
AR EBEEESENEL -

13. 13.

ok k
kK

RERAERBEEERAT AR PERL
NZHRNEERELNE BERE9
F O OEEZFEZTLERIL -

€ ERAEBEE-WEZENEL

OREBAZ(ZEZTZEF ¢ 21,000
7o) o HEREEH 2000007 (ZFF
ZTE 1 1,815,0007T) ZUEE -

f  ALATRAREAHR-—TT—&+ U

A=+ —-BRAEHRAEERIM
BRAARELERREY -

RAEAEE0ER 2T §2 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conta)

Condo Construction Engineering Co., Ltd (“Condo Construction”) is a
cooperative joint venture established in the PRC with an operating period
of 30 years extending to 2027. Pursuant to the terms as stipulated in the
joint venture agreement, Condo Construction will pay a fixed annual
guaranteed distribution of RMB300,000 te the Chinese joint venture partner.
The Group is entitled to share all the profit/losses of Condo Construction
after the distribution to the Chinese joint venture partner. The method of
distribution of the assets of Condo Construction at the end of the joint
venture period is subject to the negotiation between both joint venture

partners.

Zhuhai {Criental) Blue Horrison Properties Company Limited is a sino-foreign
equity joint venture established in the PRC with an operating period of 9
years extending to 2007.

During the year, the Group disposed of a non-principal subsidiary
at zerc consideration (2000: $21,000}, resulting in a gain of
approximately $200,000 (2000: $1,815,000).

The Company has undertaken to provide continuing support to
finance the future operations of all the subsidiaries that were at

net liability position as at 31 December 2001.
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14, Sk EEHT S 14. NON-TRADING SECURITIES
AEE
The Group
—BE-% ZZTEF
2001 2000
F F 5T
{$°000) {$°000)
LtHESEER Listed, at carrying value
— BB LW — in Hong Kong 22,115 15,654
— ERBUNBE LT — overseas 12,504 18,519
34,619 34,173
- EFREE Unlisted, at cost (a) 243,600 243,600
WO ERE Less: Provision for impairment in value (243,600 {121,800
— 121,800
34,619 155,973
tRAESFEZ AETE Quoted market value of listed securities 34,619 34,173

(@)

ZETE-H4ZR=+—H A£EE
¥ B Greater
Expressways Limited ([ GBREJ) Z i@ &
EWIS3IR(ZTETEF ¢ 15.3%) °
GBREXEB R X BEBFMAK L - B
EEABITHRESFERNR_ZFTE
FRA+T -EMGBREZEM B 2 7
Greater Beljing First Expressways
Limited ([ GBFE]) B 2 B8 < /8
BACHEGBFEZ FTE M5 E* -
GBREZ R R B A 28 43 % 244,000,000
T MEBENR_TERE+_F=
+— B ZEEELHR 122,000,000
T AFEE AEEE-FIELRD
122,000,0007C 2 B - Bk - R =
TE-FTHA=+—08 ZEEE
DR EME -

Beijing Region

fa)

As at 31 December 2001, the Group held approximately 15.3 per
cent (2000: 15.3 per cent) of the common stock of Greater Beijing
Region Expressways Limited {"GBRE"), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. Pursuant to a winding up order issued
by the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
{"HKSAR") against Greater Beijing First Expressways Limited ("GBFE”),
a key principal subsidiary of GBRE, on 12 June 2000, all the financial
information of GBFE was withheld by the liquidator. The original
investment cost of GBRE is approximately $244 million. The carrying
value of this investment was approximately $122 million as at 31
December 2000. The Group made a further provision of
approximately $122 million during the year such that this

investment was fully provided for as at 31 December 2001.
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15. HibEE 15. OTHER ASSETS
EEH ERF

The Group The Company
—EE-F C"EEZETE C—BB-5 ZEZTEE
2001 2000 2001 2000
Fr Fr FRx Fr
{$'000) {$°000) {$'000) ($°000)
AEEES Transferrable debentures 1,492 1,492 1,492 1,492
H i Others 781 345 — —
2,273 1,837 1,492 1,492

REEEBEMOER AT §4 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16. 78 16. INVENTORIES
ARE
The Group
BB CZ—ZZEF
2001 2000
Tr Fr
($'0C0) {$°000)
REREZ (a Manufacturing and trading (a)
B Raw materials 12,380 9,052
T8 Work in progress 8,675 172
B (c) . Finished goods () 12,897 14,181
33,952 23,405
B RETFER®E Less: Provision for inventory obsolescence (6,170} (934)
27,782 22,471
URPEZBERDPYEDD Properties under development
— located in the PRC (D) 211,719 167,055
URBRNZEEME Properties held for sale — located in Australia 6,986 6,986
URPEZHFEHEHE Machinery held for sale — located in the PRC 4,713 —
W BRFERE Less: Provision for net realisable value (3,714) —
999 —
VMRPEzHEE LY Land held for sale — located in the PRC — 3,500

247,486 200,012

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED §5 R AT EEEHIR A A
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16. FE ®w 16. INVENTORIES (contd
(a) ETEEEBEERITEXRBEERZ (a} Certain inventories are held under trust receipt bank loans {see
AR (R aE28) ° Note 28}.

{b) ERTYERHAEN—FEKRE - R (b} Properties under development are expected to be recovered after
FEMFERHER -FRAKRE - one year. All of the other inventories are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(c) B AP EIEL 104,000 (ZFET (c) Included in finished goods are inventories of approximately
BIZHFE RUSFREFEEA $104,000 (2000: Nil} that are stated at their net realisable values.

&= o
iE o

17. BWEFEEMEWRIE 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

rE@ b NN

The Group The Company
“EE-F C"—EZEEF BB _—EZZ2EF
2001 2000 2001 2000
Fr T Fr Fr
1$°000) ($°000)] 1$°000) $°000)

BEERENEWYW Trade and contract

BRFER(a) receivables, net {a) 113,207 154,230 — —
BRRES Retention receivable 24,767 20,042 — —
B Deposits 3,753 1,861 — —_
H it U IR X Sundry debtors — 27,200 — 20,378
S HIE Prepayments 918 42,797 83 117
H Others 7,818 6,268 963 2,136
150,463 252,398 1,046 22,631

REFECED AR AT §6 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17. BEWERF R EMEWSIE 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (contd)

#
{a) EZRENBRERZERESFT®W (a) The aging analysis of trade and contract receivables is as follows:
N
SEE
The Group
—®e-5 -—BEIF
2001 2000
Fr F 7
{$°000) ($'000)
0ZE 308 0 - 30 days 32,964 31,644
312608 31 - 60 days 26,630 11,565
61E90H 61 - 90 days 12,917 26,717
908 Bl £ Over 90 days 119,825 115,689
192,336 185,615
B ORIEEREBE Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts {79,129} [31,385)
113,207 154,230
AERBETEFZEEH —MRFIE The normal credit period granted by the Group is from 30 days to
BFEAHARITI08EG0R - 60 days from the date of invoice.
OBNEBUERBERESETMR Certain contract receivables are pledged as securities for certain
TIEEZE®R (RifiE28) - banking facilities of the Group (see Note 28).

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED §7 R A S &R ER 2 T
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18. EEEHN 18. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
rEE
The Group
—ER-F Z—ETEE
2001 2000
Fr Fr
{$'000) ($°000)
HEMEGERNERTER Cost plus attributable profits less allowances
Rz EEMERE for foreseeable losses 1,575,888 1,258,998
B CHREERIREEE Less: Progress billings received and receivable (1,574,225} (1,175,434
1,663 83,564
B Representing:
BUEFZEHNIRE Gross amounts due from customers for
e contract work 33,877 121,887
BREFZEHNIRE Gross amounts due to customers for
Ber contract work {32,214) (38,323
1,663 83,564
19. EEEZES 19. TRADING SECURITIES
AEE
The Group
_BB-5 C“—EEETH
2001 2000
F F T
{$'000) ($000)
EBLTESFZEEE Listed in Hong Kong, at carrying vaiue 4,297 3,286
FERLTES2REE Unlisted in Hong Kong, at carrying value 15,564 15,564
19,861 18,850
LR SFZ2AETE Quoted market value of listed securities 4,297 3,286

RAEEGEDHRE LT §8§ ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20. RERV|ITEX 20. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
#EE AR
The Group The Company
TEE-F ZEEERE ZBE-F§ ZEEZEF
2001 2000 2001 2000
Tr Fr Fr Fr
{$'000) ($'000) ($°C00) {$°000)
R1TFER(a) Deposits with banks (a) 279,155 329,322 216,540 . 325,706
FHAS Cash on hand 305 35,529 — 673
279,460 364,851 216,540 326,379
{a) RIFT—F+-R=+—8 £&% (a) As at 31 December 2001, certain bank deposits of the Group and
R oA B B MR 1T R A the Company of approximately $36,000,000 were frozen by a
36,000,000 LA KIRITRAE - EF bank. The directors, based on legal advice from the Group's legal
FREEBAANEEZ ERERMAMER counsel, are of the opinion that the Group has the legal right to
R AEBHEEEEENRORRE withdraw the frozen bank deposits and there will not be any
ZHRTER  WEHAEEFBETEE expected significant financial impact on the Group.

TEREREE -

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED §9 R A B2 S @EAR A 7




A Brighter Future Ahead

[l 7% 78 7 B 7 Notes to the Financial Statements

271. BNREREEMENT 21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

D]
FTEH PN
The Group The Company
ZEE-F C—TETBE ZE¥B-F ZZEEBF
2001 2000 2001 2000
T Fr Fr Fr
($°000) ($°000) 1$°000} ($°000)
ESRSHESR Trade and contract
BR 5 (a) payables (a) 97,786 128,071 89 190
FESFEIE Bills payable 6,911 — — —
FE 43 £ LA (o) Land cost payable (b] 28,285 37,192 — —
BHRENESE Accruals and payable for
oS construction costs 67,238 59,963 2,578 3,861
5 B U SR Temporary receipts 3,749 — — —
‘ EWEsRe Rental deposits received 922 1,242 — —
- BE Provisions (c 7,236 — 98,260 —
1 Hitn Others 9,858 3,097 —_ —
221,985 229,565 100,927 4,051

RrABEe£OFARALT 90 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. BEHEREREMBENER 21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (conrd

15 (#)
{a) EORAMENERZERRSF W (a) The aging analysis of trade and contract payables is as follows:
BN
T&EH
The Group
—EB-F Z—ETEHF
2001 2000
F R TR
{$'000) ($°000)
0Z 30H 0 - 30 days 15,492 68,146
31E60H 31 - 60 days 92,089 15,261
61E90H 61 - 90 days 7,500 5,544
908 Kk Qver 90 days 65,705 39,120
97.786 128,071

(o) NI HATIEERPEREERTY {b) Land cost payable represents autstanding land premium in respect
EZHRHE - of the praperties under development in Zhuhai, the PRC.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 9] RA B EEE@ER L T
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21. ENBRREMENT 21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (conrq

T (5)
() BE {c) Provisions
TEE PN
The Group The Company
—EE-F ZE2EELEF CZ¥B-F CZERETF
2001 2000 2001 2000
Fr Fr Fr F
1$°000) {$'000) {$'000) {$'000)
F9 Beginning of year — — — —
EREE Provisions made during the year
— DEBRIBH — claims from subcontractors
BHNIERE for certain contract
ZEE work ! 7,028 — — —
— RITERY — bank guarantees ! —_ — 98,260 —
— HAt — others 208 — — —
F End of year 7,236 — 98,260 —
(i) FTEEAR BETOoERREME=T (i} During the year, several claims were served against the Group by
HRBOEANTIEHFEERLBESR subcontractors and other third parties in respect of certain contract
- EHERBHZBERERE work. A total provisions of $7,028,000 (2000: Nil} have been
& 7,028,000t BEB(ZEEE made for estimated compensation and expenses, which have not
F ) ARNBEMBREZEETX been discounted as the effect of discounting is not material. The
MW EAABE TR - BHEEER majority of these claims are expected to be settled in the next
Mz REODBET —EHBREFEES financial year.
(i) HAIEESEERETHB A ER (i) The amount represents provisions made for corporate guarantees
BZRITREMAS TRITEHZ provided to various banks in respect of banking facilities extended
IR IED 2 BE - to certain subsidiaries.
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22. SHEREE 22. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
| sxm
The Group
—g®-% —2TEF
2001 2000
Fr T
{$°000) ($°000]
RITEX Bank overdrafts 76,162 32,560
ERWERTER Trust receipt bank loans 31,647 15,078
EEBERTER Secured bank loans 60,089 65,098
ERRTERINBPIH2 Current portion of long-term bank loans . 36,617 76,993
204,515 189,729
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23. REEE 23. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
xEO
The Group
ZEE-F CZETEBEF
2001 2000
Fr T
{$'000) ($'000)
BEEARTER Secured bank loans
AR—FREE Repayable within cne year 36,617 76,993
ARMFAMEE Repayable in the second year 193 36,631
ER=ZZHLEREE Repayable in the third to fifth years 624 539
ARTFRMEE Repayable beyond five years 757 1,059
38,191 115,222
B AR-FREELHE Less: Amounts repayable within one year
FBAEZHE included under current liabilities {36,617) (76,993)
1,574 38,229
Hib KR E (o) Other unsecured loans (a
AR=ZERLEXNEE Repayable in the third to fifth years — 41
RARAFHME Repayable beyond five years 1,666 1,680
1,666 1,721
MBENER The present value of obligations under
R1E (b finance leases (b)
AR—FRHEE Repayable within one year 116 83
ERMERFEE Repayable in the second to fifth years 134 142
250 225
3,374 40,092
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23. RAEE @ 23. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (contd)
(a) HEMSRBERIELEIREENEL (a) Other unsecured loans represent loans from minority investors,
2EERARES BBEAR—ERHE which are unsecured, non-interest bearing and will not be
BIZER- repayable within one year.
{b) FEEOER (b) Obligations under finance leases
TEHE
The Group
—EE-F CZELETEF
2001 2000
Fr T
($°000) ($°000)
REMBEYENZ Total minimum lease payments under
REESHE finance leases
AR—FRER Repayable within ane year 136 104
BERMZELEER Repayable in the second to fifth years 159 243
295 347
wW:REER Less: Finance charges {45} (122)
250 225

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED 9 R A EEEBER A T
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24. RIEH A 24. DEFERRED TAXATION
TEEYTETYEBRRIEEBEZELREHIE Potential deferred taxation assets for which no provision has been made
BEWMET in the financial statements comprise:
*EQ
The Group
—BE-F ZEEZESF
20071 2000
Fr Fit
($°000) ($'000)
FEERBEARE Depreciation charges in excess of
EHoEH depreciation allowances 58 225
MEER Tax losses 57,454 18,624
Hib Others — 60
57,512 18,909

HTRESELLMNBEHRFEEESLTRAIE The above net deferred taxation assets have not been recognised in the
BigmBR, SRS EEFELET AY financial statements as it is not certain whether these assets can be

TBHE - crystallised in the foreseeable future.
25. I 25. SHARE CAPITAL
—EB-F —EEZEF
2001 2000
gt S8 RE ]
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
TR T TR T
{‘000) ($°000) {000 {$'000)
EE Authorised:
EREEOIRT Ordinary shares of
ZBR $0.1 each 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
CEITRAR Issued and fully paid:
SREEOIT Ordinary shares of
EZBKR $0.1 each 772,182 77,218 772,182 77,218
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26. W& 26. RESERVES
(a) EEEREBEZEHTHOT (a) Movements in reserves during the year are as follows:
P
The Group
REZF
BREER (REER)
e f##%  Retained
BRORE BHBHDb) Capital Investment earnings
Share Contributed redemption revaluation {Accumulated Rt
premium  surplus(b) reserve reserve deficit) Total
T r Fr r Fr Fr
($:000) (5:000) (5°600) ($°000) ($°000) (5°000)
(B EE33)
[Note 33)
R-ZZEZZE-3-8 At 1 January 2000 4
— WMUA BT 2 & — as previously reported 409,738 432,967 769 - 80,293 923,767
—ERENEHES — prior year adjustment in
HHoEERERE respect of impairment
ZLERE (RME33) losses of goodwill previously
written off against contributed
surplus fsee Note 33) — 170,485 — — [170,485) —
—EJ — as restated 409,738 603,452 769 - (90,192) 923,767
BEBNMBRF Exchange difference on translation
BEBRAEE of financial statements
ZEFEH of overseas subsidiaries - (59} - - 921 862
FEERS2EfR Deficit on revaluation of non-trading
BE securities - — — [18,693) — (18.693)
BFE/UERERNT Goodwill released on liquidation/
gRyES disposal of subsidiaries - 28 — — — 28
MELAREE /HER Realisation of contributed surplus on
ERZHBMER liquidation/disposal of a subsidiary - (1,847 — — - {1,847
BE/LEMBEATG Realisation of cumulative translation
BRAMNED reserve on liquidation/disposal
B of subsidiaries — - - - (144) (144
KEEFER Net profit for the year - — — - 11,525 11,525
R-ZZEEF
+ZAz+-8 At 31 December 2000 409738 601,574 769 (18,693)  (77.890) 915498
BREEHNELT Exchange difference on translation
HEBRRFEL of financial statements
ZEREH of overseas subsidiaries — —_ — — (1,397) (1,397
REEHEBER Impairment in value of non-trading
THEAAEZ securities previously recorded under
FEFESHE investment revaluation reserve — — — 18,693 — 18,693
BR/LEHELAR Realisation of contributed surplus
2RHBEH on liquidation/disposal of a subsidiary — (159) — - - (159)
TEEHRRE Net loss for the year — — — — (373.734)  (373,734)
R-ZZBE-E
+-A=+-8 At 31 December 2001 409,738 601,415 769 —  (453021) 558,901
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26. f#fE & 26. RESERVES (conrd)
KFEEREBEZ2EDOHTWT
b NN
The Company
&xEm REBA
(REER)
L] Retained
RGEE SHEH]D) Capital earnings
Share Contributed redemption (Accumulated RE
premium surplus{b) reserve deficit) Total
Tr Fr T Tr Fr
($°000) {$000) {$000] ($°000 {$°000]
R-ZBEEEF¥-F-H At | January 2000 409,738 575,220 769 98,566 1,084,293
ZEEBRERER Loss for the year — — — [119,899] (119,899
R-ZEZZEEF
tZA=+—-8H” At 31 December 2000 409,738 575,220 769 (21,333} 964,394
TEEBEERER Loss for the year — — — (387,924 (387,924
R-EE-F
TZE=+—-18” At 31 December 2001 409,738 575,220 769 (409,257) 576,470
(b) BB ETEELRLARNKE (b) Contributed surpius mainly represents the excess of the fair value
ONFEM Investment Limitedf% 3 2 22 F of shares in ONFEM Investments Limited, acquired by the Company
BESHARIBRE-—NNA—F+— over the nominal value of the new shares of the Company issued
ATRBZBRORBRBERTTRZ pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement dated 19 November
O EERE - 1991.
BEEREQLTERT  FARHKT Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
HoR TR - EETIHERT QA distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
THRERNBEREASEHEAE Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
i (AR RREBRRIEL S IRE out of contribution surplus if (i] it is, or would after the payment
REEX B BER  S(ijEAREEE be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the
ZABREESNEEE BEETR realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
ERBGRERZEM - aggregate of its liabilities and issued share capital and share
premium account.
[c) FRER_EFE—F+_A=1T—H {c} At 31 December 2001, the aggregate amount of reserves available

AHEHSETFTRREZERABENHA
166,732,000 (Z EFE T &F
554,656,0007T) °

RFEEBELEQDER 2T 98 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

for distribution to shareholders of the Company was approximately
$166,732,000 (2000: $554,656,000).




27. REBEREXRNSE 27.

(a) BRBARF (SR BELEERRER (a)

1Y 7 F% 7€ B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

FLOW STATEMENT

A Brighter Future Ahead

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH

Reconciliation of (loss) profit befere lteAnrxrto nét TceushAcnuTnflow

W8 >~ W ER from operating activities
ZEE-F Z—ZTETEF
2001 2000
e F T
Note ($'000} ($°000
AT (B518) F F {Loss) Profit before tax (382,803) 8,305
B WA Interest income {24,509) (34,822
B ZH Interest expense 8,731 14,505
mE Depreciation 6,580 7.248
ME- - BERRZE Impairment loss of property, plant
&8s and equipment 7,543 3,069
HEWX BER Loss on disposal of property, plant
HEER and equipment 100 152
REYEER Loss {Gain) on revaluation of
By (Y ) investment properties 36,500 (31,300)
BEHENB AR Z W R Gain on liquidation/disposal of a subsidiary 27{b/ {200} (1,815]
tHERERE®WA Dividend income from listed investments (885) (729)
FEERS Provision for impairment in value of
WERE non-trading securities 140,047 —
REFLEEE Provision for inventory obsolescence 5,236 347
HTELHARIEEE [Write-back of] Provision for net
(em) a4 realisable value of land held for sale {409} 1,000
BEHERBIITEIR Provision for net realisable value of
FEEEE machinery held for sale 3,714 —
EEZERARER Provision for loan to intermediate
B holding company 23,803 —
FERBE Provision for bad and doubtful debts
(T B 1% 5 i FE WIR 50 (excluding a sundry debtor] 47,744 5,205
RIFRBE— Provision for bad and doubtful debt-
B FE W BR 3R sundry debtor 20,000 —
BUEFPEQNTE Provision for gross amounts due from
BEE customers for contract work 11,935 —
P EIEEE Provision for PRC taxes 5,111 —
EREERSELEZ Unrealised (gain) loss on revaluation of
REBIB(WH)EB trading securities (1,011) 798
H&EEE M Increase in other assets {436) (180]
FEIEMN Increase in inventories (51,302) (41,937)
BUEBZERATZ Decrease in loan to intermediate ,
ERFEEYL holding company 3,298 1,549
By EBREZRHERT {increase] Decrease in net amounts
2 FUEE R A (8 ) due from/to fellow subsidiaries (337) 333
ERLEIREE 2 FRIE Decrease (Increase) in amounts due
BRI (E ) from minority investors 2,645 (10,021}
BURABREMERRIERDY Decrease in trade and other receivables 33,540 130,242
W "ENEFEHIEMIE Decrease (Increase) in net amount due
B A (32 ) from/to customers for contract work 75,626 (193,274)
SRR 7 IS m Increase in pledged deposits (14,082) [54,776)
CREFIIEM Increase in frozen deposits {36,000) —
ENBEERARZ Decrease in amount due to »
HIER D intermediate holding company [1,699) —
BALEHREE ZHA Decrease in amount due to a minority
FERL investor [11,277) —
EAERAREMENFIE (Decrease) Increase in trade and
B R ) other payables (6,793) 20,727
HttBEEM Increase in other liabilities 186 2,398
FEHAE Exchange adjustments 8 [t
REXBRE Net cash outflow from
piifueleg: operating activities (99,396) (172,987)
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27. L BESREENTw 27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (contd)

{b) Ee O HEMOAR {b) Liquidation/Disposal of a subsidiary

—ER-F C—Z2EREE

2001 2000
Bt i T
Note ($°000) [$'000)
CEREeREFE Net cash consideration received 27(c/ — 21
B EHZR(RBE EE Less: Net [liabilities) assets disposed of
ME BERRSE Property, plant and equipment —_ 120
FEWERREMEKRIE Trade and other receivables 651 801
RERBRTER Cash and bank deposits 62 2,195
EHERRAREMESRE Trade and other payables {787} (2,781)
(74) 335
m:LBEREEER Add: Minority interests (33] 166
GEELEZHE Goodwill arising on consolidation — (28)
LEBMNBH Realisation of contributed surplus 159 1,847
BRIETER Realisation of cumulative
#E translation reserve — 144
126 2,129
B HEWB LR Z MR Gain on liquidation/disposal of a subsidiary 27{a/ 200 1,815
{c) HEEE HE-MHOARZRS (<) Analysis of net outflow of cash and bank deposits in respect
RETERRUEFESMN of the liquidation/disposal of a subsidiary
—2F-F "EZTE®E
2001 2000
B ez Fr T
Note {$'000) {$°000)
ERAEREBEEH Net cash consideration received 27(b) — 21
HEMBZRERETER Cash and bank deposits
disposed of {62} (2,195}
162] (2.174)

RAEEG®ELQHERLQ T 700 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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. mEBREARERME @ 27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOVY STATEMENT (cont'g)
(d) FRARESB 2T '(d] Analysis of thanges in financing during the year
AHRREEE
(TEERTEX
RERKE
RITER
Short-term and
long-term
borrowings
[excluding bank 2L EEREE
overdrafts and Bx
trust receipt Minority
bank (oans) interests
Fr Fi
1$°000) ($°000)
R-ZZEBZEE—-8-8 At January 2000 194,597 62,838
BEERERH Net repayment of borrowings (77.420) —
AR New borrowings 65,089 —
LHREEREEE Share of loss by minority investors — (5,611]
LPEHREERAEX Capital contribution from a minority
investor — 1,623
BRHE BB Decrease arising from liquidation/
ACINTEIE: §ed =1 disposal of & subsidiary — (166
RZIEEEEF
+=-ZB=+—-8 At 31 December 2000 182,266 58,684
BEREEFR Net repayment of borrowings (139,762 —
MIEEE New borrowings 57,692 —
LEREEREER Share of loss by minority investors — [23,013)
DEREERAER Capital contribution from a minaority investor — 312
ERHE—BHE Increase arising from liquidation/
RE Mol Bz EE disposal of a subsidiary — 33
RIBEE-F
+ZA=+-—-H At 31 December 2001 100,196 36,016

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED Q] R A E & MEE A S
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27. HEESHRERWZE @

{e} HEeRERSEEEE (e)

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (contq]

Cash and cash equivalents

—8%-5 -TBTE

2001 2000
Fr Fr
($°000) ($°000)

BeREBITER Cash and bank deposits
(FEEREER) (excluding frozen deposits) 243,460 364,851
WITEX Bank overdrafts [76,162) (32,560)
ERWERITER Trust receipt bank loans [31,647) (15,078
135,651 317,213

28. VITEE

AEEBR-ZET—F+-A=+—HZEMT
EE & 292,636,000 (ZFTEF -
375.563,0007T) - mMEBZRBAZENS
51,434,000 (ZEFEF : 51,967,000
) EEZEARE

(a) KNEE FAERQE S RIH132,598,000 (a)
T(ZEFEF : 118,516,0007T) &
114,168,000t (ZEEF F
89.019,0007T) 2 & HATF 3Kk

(b} BRE(E& #£49237,092,000t (=& (b)
TEE 0 273,773,0000) 2 & T8
B T RAETF

() ETFBEANZEED: (c)

(@ AEBLERUBERTHREZ (d)
EFEE R

o) AEEMEZATERE - le)

RAEABEEODAEMR AT /02 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

28.

BANKING FACILITIES

Aggregate banking facilities of the Group as at 31 December 2001 were
approximately $292,636,000 (2000: $375,563,000), of which the unused
facilities as at the same date amounted to approximately $51,434,000
{2000: $51,967,000). Securities for the facilities include:

fixed deposits of the Group of approximately $132,598,000 {2000:
$118,516,000] and of the Company of approximately
$114,168,000 {2000: $§89,019,000);

certain investment properties, and land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately $237,092,000 (2000:
$273,773.000);

progress billings of certain construction contracts;

certain of the Group's inventories held under trust receipt loan

arrangements,; and

corporate guarantee given by the Group.
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29. B¥E 29. COMMITMENTS
(a) AEBR-_TE-F+A=+—H (a) Capital commitments of the Group outstanding at 31 December
I BRIE BE 2 R BB A EIED 2001 not provided for in the accounts are as follows:
N
—BE-F CZEEETE
2001 2000
Fr FiT
{$°000) ($°000}
EEERITYN Authorised and contracted for
REETEE HMERZRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment 155 2,680
MERTEE Capital contribution in a subsidiary — 4,902
BREPUE Properties under development 137,485 52,868
137,640 60,450

(b} R-BE—F+-_A=+—-—BF£ER
BEEEYE TAHREZEERY
EHEN 13,253,000 (T BT E
— 4,509,0007T) ° RE\E I HEE S
ANz BESERASHBENT

As at 31 December 2001, the Group’s commitments in respect of
rented premises under non-cancellable operating leases amounted
to approximately $13,253,000 {2000: $4,509,000). Details of the
total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

—BB-% —FTEE

2001 2000
¥ Fr
($°000) ($'000)

BRzBEBERSE Total future minimum lease payments payable:
—FR Within one year 3,410 1,542
—FE#EBEFENA After one year but within five years 2,123 2,528
BEE#% After five years 7,720 439
13,253 4,509

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED JO3 A F 2L EER AT
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29. ZEIE un

(<) FEERBSEHEOLEREYME -
BREBONMBRA—ENE  EEF
BRI EERE  fEEEN - B
O TEERAEER -

KIETE—E+_A=Z+—8 ' 8BE

B %5 7% % B # Notes to the Financial Statements

29. COMMITMENTS (contd)

(c) The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for initial periods of one to four years, with
an option to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2001, the total future minimum lease payments

TR EEEENER s BERIEE receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
HFWT

—EB-% -STTE

2001 2000

Fr F

{$°000) ($'000)

FEBR-F Not later than one year 11,643 12,738

—FUEHEFHUT Later than one year and not later than five years 7,244 12,279

18,887 25,017

30. B =& El

FEBRETEERZEB(ERD BH—
EEBHRKEReHB(TERETE] - &
EEELEE AFSHE IO L ERIERETE
ZEBASKR - MHEBENATEEZRE
EFARAEMIOE - B RN BE RS SERE
ERMBEHFERMEALS  MEMATEER
2 BRI 2E9F - BRI EIUE FHER
ZIO%ZEISH. Al BEREELEIR
BB IXR BRZEEINERK
REEBHARNBRESSEREREFFL -

EEERMTRERNR _ZETZE+8
—BHEHERELESEE (—IEEBLER
AERBZ THEHFEEN%E  BEESWNEBLRF
REBEARBELAHMESZEMIATTAKESR
HEsuDBIELHER EEEMBATIRE
BZHEREBYE AT A 1.0007% @ BBBEE
ZREINERBEREME  UTZEARES -

REAFEREOER QT J04 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

30. PENSION SCHEME

Defined contribution pension schemes (the “Pension Schemes”) are
provided to certain eligible employees employed by the Group. The Group
is required to make manthly contributions to the schemes at rates ranging
from 5% to 10% of the employees’ monthly salary. Employees under the
defined contribution schemes are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution and the accrued interest upon retirement or leaving the
Group after completing ten years of service from the date of joining the
Group, or at a scale of between 10% and 95% after completing 2 to 9
years of service from the date of joining the Group. However, employees
seconded from the State Nonferrous Metals Industry Administration
("SNMIA"} are entitled to 100% of the emplayer’'s contribution and the
accrued interest upon retirement or at any time leaving the Group.

With the introduction of the MPF, a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee, by the government of the HKSAR on |
December 2000, each of the Hong Kong subsidiaries and those employees
not eligible to join the Pension Schemes make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ cash income as defined under the
MPF legislation. Contributions of each of the Hong Kong subsidiaries and
their employees are subject to a maximum amount of $1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary and are not subject to any

limitation.




A Brighter Future Ahead

B B 97 5 [ 3k Notes to the Financial Statements

30. B8 @ 30. PENSION SCHEME (conta)
BEXEFABHBRBRKW I ERHES The aggregate employer's contributions, net of forfeited contributions,

amounted to:

—gT-%5 -TEEF

2001 2000

Frx T

{$°000) ($°000]

BEEHER Employer’s contribution 2,430 1,826
B OBRUEEEEXHER Less: Forfeited contributions utilised to offset

Z R W AR employer’s contribution (507) (487)

1,923 1,339

RoET-F+_A=Z+—H EBEEE®RZ As at 31 December 2001, the amount of forfeited contributions arising
BEDMHEFXAELFEmMRANRZ#®HEOR from employees leaving the scheme before becoming fully vested and
86,0007 (ZFEEEF : 79,0007w) + EA A which was available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in
FHBRTEEBBENZHR - the future was approximately $86,000 {2000: $79,000).

TEEFMEHEEEHINEFEKRE - B All the PRC employees of the Group are entitled to a monthly pension

BRNEHBNE B Z B B RKE 818 payable by an independently managed retirement plan sponsored by the

AXft - Bl AL ZRBAEDREZTE 2 government. The individual pension is calculated according to the

REMETZEBANTE - REEZHE applicable formula specified in the insurance policies of the plan. The

S REBEBRPBEREEFZEELGIHM Group is required to contribute to the plan at a fixed percentage of basic

RETEIEH G - salary of the PRC employees in addition to the amount contributed by the
employees.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED JOS RA SR EHER A A




A Brighter Future Ahead

o % 78 7¢ BV 3 Notes to the Financial Statements

31. HEEE 31.

R-BE-E+_A=Z+—HEFEZXEER
BWT

(a) AEEREEEEANERIMMESE (a)
EHET DR ZERN92,754,0007T
ZEEREE 1 852050005T) °

(b) ARBRETHE R MESEIBIT (b)
EEMmMMEBEITERZLFERY
255,103,000 (Z T T T &
220,723,0007C) c RZEE—F+ =
B=Z+—8  ZTAFEBHE(REH
H2UCETERE AR RREBEEE RN
98,260,000 (ZEETETEF : B) -

(c) FRECDAFERBETAEERTES {c)

EEFPERERTIEES - HEFHE
B FAEEHEREEZENTR -
ZEBRATRESIMRAKREBEERINE
B -BREEAAEEERINER (A
) FAEHYEBERNFELBE-E
ERARFEETEELAEEZHBE
REFRERTE -

(d} TEBAERBENIEAE=-ERHE fel]
HAEBETRBEFRBED
12,440,000/ T (ZETTF : @) &

HEBE -ZEEREZREETEHERE
BUBERETAEAEE -

RABEHELHEMR~AFT /06 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2001, there were contingent liabilities in respect of the
following:

The Group provided guarantees to employers of construction
contracts in respect of the obligations of the associated construction
contracts amounting to approximately $92,754,000 (2000:
$85,205,000).

The Company provided corporate guarantees to various banks in
respect of banking facilities extended to certain subsidiaries
amounting to approximately $255,103,000 (2000: $220,723,000).
As at 31 December 2001, the Company had a total provision of
approximately $98,260,000 (2000: Nil] in respect of such corporate
guarantees in the Company's financial statements {see Note Z21/(c}).

The Group has undertaken and performed electrical and
mechanical engineering work for various customers in Hong Kong
and the PRC. In respect of such projects, the Group has unsettled
tax payables which may result in potential additional charges. No
provision has been made by the Group since the amount of
additional charges, if any, cannot be reliably determined. The
directors are of the opinion that this matter will not have any

significant financial impact on the Group.

The Group has certain outstanding litigations with claims made by
third parties of approximately $12,440,000 (Z000: Nil} in aggregate
in respect of contract works and no provision has been made by
the Group. The directors are of the opinion that this matter will

not have any significant financial impact on the Group.
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32. BEBALIXRS 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

WER— S EESRBEEZHR AR S Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
—HIELM R EERESHETEERE indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
Zh HHEFEEZMAENKTEER the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
TR MEFHAREREHE - also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or

common significant influence.

(a) FEFHEMBBALTZEARSOT ¢ (a) The Group had the following material transactions with related
parties:

—2®-5 —TIEF

2001 2000
T T
($'000) ($'000]
mEBZERLEREZ Interest income received from intermediate

AW A holding company 2,451 2,936
BEEMNBATWENE Purchase of properties from fellow subsidiaries 3,900 —

FEEEREIZER QTR Sharing of administrative costs of intermediate
=g holding company 2,863 3,830

EERS FALBEBBALZE The directors consider that all of the above transactions with related

SR —MBEEEIETE  BELRE parties were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the

BER-AREHBIETETT - ardinary and normat course of business of the Group.

(b) & E (b} The Group

BlEATHERRBZERNOT ¢ The terms of the balances with related parties are as follows:

(i) AEBIZERL2DEHY (i) The loan to intermediate holding company of approximately
23,803,000 2 EM R EK $23,803,000 (2000: $27,101,000) is unsecured, bearing
BIREEEENENE I interest at commercial lending rates and repayable on 31
AR_BRE-FHA=+—8 May 2002. The Group recognised interest income of
BE (Z2FZFEF approximately $2,451,000 (2000: $2,936,000) for the loan.
27.101.,0007T) « REHER As at 31 December 2001, a full provision was made for the
MZEEBEZMNBRARY outstanding loan.
2,451,000t (ZE B FF ¢
2,936,0007L) <« R-_TE—F
+T-AE=E+—8  £EHTYHRXR
EEEEZIHETER -

(i} FERERAT - BEMBAE ar Other balances with intermediate holding company, fellow
RALBIREEZHbERB R subsidiaries and minority investors are unsecured, non-
E|ER - FITE . EEETEE interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED JO/ B A E R EEHR LT
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33. MMTRFEFRAE
BRzZEHERAE

BT I3(EE — YA HREPRER
HAMEBZERREEEZBELATEIZE
FAEERAETERNAISSRRGH
WrEE HEBERENEERERESI
BZRETEY - BB ERMBET K
ZIEHMBESEERSKERZ —EBEX -
EHEBENEIRZETRIABIZETR
M ARESHEBENE2ERETTELE

AEICEZBEMRE -

FEEBCRHELAEQATEEELSE B
LaE@ MRt Nk EBESE - Bt -
AEEER-_ZEEEF+_F=+—8#%
FEZER 2 BMBHRERBRSEBHIESI R
U B MY BB 4 R & & 2 A 2R {E 107,485,000

T

34. BRIERLT

BEERE ERERLIREEREEZM
X 3L Z China Nonferrous Metals Holdings
[Cook Islands) Limited » ZZ 2 Bl ML EBEAIER
BEeBIXR(HEABEEELEERERT
ENACeBITREOBAEE EE - BES
HERREESZEEN _EE—F A+
NEERZEN BEREELSBIERET
EEeeBTXEHBRER BN -

RABREDER DT 08 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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33. ADJUSTMENT RETROSPECTIVELY APPLIED
UPON ADOPTION OF NEVW ACCOQUNTING
STANDARD IN HONG KONG

In accordance with the provisions of Interpretation 13 “Goodwill —
continuing requirements for goodwill and negative goodwill previously
eliminated against/credited to reserves”, assessments of impairment of
goodwill also apply to goodwill previously eliminated against contributed
surplus which has not been restated at the time of adoption of SSAP 30.
Any impairment loss identified in respect of goodwill previously eliminated
against contributed surplus is to be recognised as an expense in the
income statement. The amendments to SSAP 30 and the provisions of
Interpretation 13 are reqguired to be reflected in accordance with the
requirements of SSAP 2 and the transitional provisions in SSAP 30.

The Group has performed an assessment of the fair value of its assets,
including the related goodwill that had previously been charged to
contributed surplus. As a result, the Group has retrospectively restated
their previously reported contributed surplus and retained earnings as at
31 December 2000 by $170,485,000 for the impairment of goodwill
arising from the acquisitions of subsidiaries.

34. ULTIMIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors consider the ultimate holding company to be China
Nonferrous Metals Holdings (Cook Islands) Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cook Islands, which was previously ultimately held by
SNMIA, a government institution responsible for the regulation and
administration of the nonferrous industry in the PRC. Pursuant to a notice
promuigated by the State Economic and Trade Commission of the PRC on
19 February 2001, SNMIA was removed in the course of the restructuring
of the nonferrous metals industry in the PRC.




35, EESEROAEE

BEREFRANTRESEEZRN _22 _FMWA
+ B #& < Ferrier Hodgson & Co. Z % & John
Leesk Desmond Chiong AFBEE £ B (&
BEEERAS(AQRERZEMETRA
Bl RIEMRARR) 2 ERBSIEREE A - WAL -
ELGDERERBERAMNEELTEHEF
BEEeB (BB EEERAFNIRAEAN
FE MBEEPUEUHLREELEAY
.

36. HERE

GZUBRRER BT _FMA-_+=EE
ERgeERERT®E -
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35. EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 10 April 2002, the High Court of the HKSAR ordered that John Lees
and Desmond Chiong, principals of Ferrier Hodgson & Co., be appointed
with immediate effect as the provisional liquidators of China Nonferrous
Metals Group {Hong Kong) Limited ("CNMG"), the intermediate holding
company and the controlling shareholder of the Company for the time
being. The Company has already requested the provisional liquidators to
keep the Company informed of any material development of CNMG which
may have an impact on the Group and the Company.

36. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 April 2002.

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED /09 R AR EEAER AT




A Brighter Future Ahead

48 Bl ¥y 3% Group Properties

1. BEEREREBEZEE 1. Major properties held for investment

B HEAR HEW
Location Existing use Lease term
EBFRERHINRAIBERE [ 235
Ak B} 10058 Commercial Long
ONFEM Tower, 29 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong

Inland Lot No. 1005

TELEBEBERRBEERANEILEEBARBE T=E RH
Flat A and B on Level 8 of Yi Cui Court, Residential Long
Crest Villa, Zhang Yang Road,
Pu Dong, Shanghai, the PRC

2. TEFEPE 2. Major property held for sale
REEED rEE
(73 3K) fY R
i B BERE Gross floor area The Group's
Location Existing use {square metre) interest
Penthouse 801, 802 and 803, = 353 100%
10 Freeman Road, Chatswood, Residential

Sydney, Australia

RAEBOEEERL T /70 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HEWE (#) Group Properties (cont’d)

3. TEZRPYWE 3. Major property under development
hBEE
BREEERE T5RE
AMERBH (F 7 K) ok $:5
EIME Expected BERBE Site area/ gross The
b Bk Stage of compietion intended floor area Group's
Location completion date use (square metre} interest
TEEREKREM EETHTE —ET-HF IEREE 16,454/89,000 80%
ENEEXRNEBRKE #FHEIE +T-ZAE-H)
HEMNERXR
Al the junction of Basement  December 2003 Residential
Haijing Road and structure (Phase Ij and
Haizhou Road, Jida, works commercial
Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai,  in progress
Guangdong Province,
the PRC

ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED [/ R A E R EEHMR DA
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i 4 [ B 15 8 Five Year Financial Summary

“2E2-% ZEEEE -—-AANE -—-AAMNE -ARtE
31.12.2001 31.12.2000 31.12.1999 31.12.1998 31.12.1997
Fr T T T Tr
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
L] Turnover 315,580 470,641 1,130,877 1,630,889 1,836,468
&g (BB BHM  (Loss) Profit from operations  {374,072) 22,810 146,067 (128,992) 208,417
B # B A Finance costs [8.731) (14,505 [44,032) 170,074) [99,918)
SEBEERR  Share of praofit of
wE (R associated companies — — — — 4,738
BB AT Loss) Profit before
(BR) &7 taxation {382,803) 8,305 102,035 [199,066) 113,237
g Taxation (13,944) (2,391) [32.481) (34,416) [32,245)
DERFES  Minority interests 23,013 5,611 (43,721) {32,823 (24,696)
iR RS {Loss) Profit attributable
(B1B)HF to shareholders {373.734) 11,525 25,833 (266,305) 56,296
EEHAR Assets and liabilities
kRBEE Non-current assets 315,494 483,099 477,199 1,132,574 1,433,338
REEERE  Net current assets 362,599 610,791 680,032 700,900 686,693
BEAER Total assets less current
REBAE liabilities 678,093 1,093,890 1,157,231 1,833,474 2,120,031
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (5.958] (42.490] (93,408) (713,907}  (782.677]
ABRES Convertible bonds — — - (23,161) [23,167)
DEREER  Minority interests (36,016) [58,664) (62,838]  {173,812] (136,008)
636,119 992,716 1,000,985 922,594 1,178,179
B Share capital 77,218 77,218 77,218 77,218 77,745
wE Reserves 558,901 915,498 923,767 845,376 1,100,434
636,119 992,716 1,000,985 922,594 1,178,179

EFE®BEDOEMRLT /]2 ONFEM HOLDINGS LIMITED




